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tourists 12 first-class sleepers

will be newly manufactured,
and 28 cars comprising first-class
sleepers, observation cars and
dining cars will be remodelled.
Some of the returned cars for
Allied Foreces will also be made
avallable for foreign tourists.
Efforts will also be made for
the improvemént of the law for
interpretors and guides, the
guidance of service organs for
foreign tourists, the repair and
preservation of important works
of art, histric sites and natural
monuments, and for the perfec-
tion of the equipment of nation-

ciplinary Action against Messrs,
Yobun Kaneko, Ko Nakanishi,
Masao Iwama, Toraichi Hara,
Katsuji Itano, Karoku Hosoka-
wa, Masao Nakamura, Kunihiko
Kanie and Katsumasa Amada
(proposed by Mr. Ryuen Kusaba
and 1 other), Motion for Dis-
ciplinary Action against Messrs.
Kisaku Matsushima, Nobuo Asa-
oka, Tsunetaro Kato, Uemon
Ikeda, Yoshito Okamoto, Kazuo
Kitamura and Torio Yano,
(proposed by Mr. Gengo Kino-
shita and 4 others) and Motion
for Disciplinary Action against
Messrs., Kisaku Matsushima,

Mr. Ikeda who was beside me.
Naturally, Mr. Ikeda went to his
assistance, but I think it ag-
gravated the melee. Accordingly
as stated in Mr Kusaba’s ex-
planation, there is no reason
why I should beat Mr. Kato who
had no connection with the oec-
currence and was standing silent
deside us. (“A matter  of
course !’ cried some one.) Aec-
cordingly then the actual scene —
Mr. Kato did not stand quiet
with both hands on his shoulders,
but the moment the turmoil
happened those who were begide
us suddenly rushed in between

al parks.

The Vice President: We now
open today’s meeting. I have a
matter to consult you about. Mr
Soji Okada has tendered his
resignation as a Budget Com-

mittee Member, Mr. Akira Ono

as an Accounts Committee Mem-

bers, Mr Matsusuke Kawamura

as a Diet Operation Committee .

member and Mr Takeo Sai as a
Diseiplinary Committee member.
Have you any objection to ac-
cepting their resignations?

(Some members: ‘“ No objec-
tion.?”’) |

The Vice President: I see you
have no objection. In this con-
nection, I name Mr. Takeo Sai
as a Budget Committee Member,
Mr Yasuji Yuki as an Accounts
Committee Member, Myr. Kohei
Nakagawa as a Diet Operation
Committee Member and Mr
So0ji Okada as a Disciplinary
Committee member. '

-------------------

The Vice President: Have you
any objection to taking up for
discussion the resolution con-
cerning Non-confidenee in the
President of the House proposed
by Mr. Katsumasa Amada and
22 others?

(Some Members: ‘“No objec-
tion.’?)

The Vice President: I see you
have no objection. We shall
now take a vote on the Resolu-
tion. The Members supporting
1t are requested to stand up.

(A minority of Members stood

Nobuo Asaoka, Tsunetaro Kato,

Uemon Ikeda, Yoshito Okamoto,

Kazuo Kitamura and Torio Yano
(proposed by Mr. Shigeharu

Nakance) (in continuation of the

previous meeting)? In connec-

tion with the disciplinary motion

proposed by Mr. Ryuen Kusaba

and 1 other, each Member con-
cerned has asked for leave to
explain his own position. You
will be given leave to explain
in the order of the notification.
Mr. Kunihiko Kanie, please !

Mr. Kunihiko Kanie: As Mr.
Ryuen Kusaba’s explanation of
the purpert of his disciplinary
motion at the plenary session,
on the day before yesterday,
was quite different from the
fact, I will frankly state the
real fact.

A little while before the in-
cident broke out, I went to the
President’s salon to confer with
our party’s Diet Steering Com-
mittee concerning the introduc-
tion of the disciplinary motion
and cthis bill of non-confidence :
but, the President’s salon, as
you know, was full of our col-

leagues, and the moment I had

passed barely through the crowd,
somebody tried to pull me back
my right shoulder, so I turned
about to find that he was nobody
else than Mr. Kato, Parlia-

- mentary Vice Minister. If I

had kept silent though struck,
it would have been all right;
but as you know, in that case
not only I but all members were
in a hurry and greatly excited,

Mr. Kato and me. Therefore, I
rushed to Mr. Kato once: but T
could not do g0 more than once-
my hands could not reach him.
The fact was...... (Laughter) 1
did not strike Mr. Kato several
times. This is a false charge.

You ean understand that point
if you glance at the photograph.-
I remember that photograph was

probably taken instantaneocusly.
1 think that there was barely
time enough to take a photo-
graph quietly. According to
Mr. Kusaba’s explanation, when
Mr. Kato was intently listening
to the debate, he was pushed by
the surging crowd and thrusted
me away from behind me; but
that time the condition was
such that when I went into the
crowd behind me there was a
vacancy. Besides, at the entran-
ce the guards insisted that no
one that a Diet man. would be
allowe® in. Even I was told not
to enter, so it is impossible that
a large number of members
pushed us from behind. Again
it was before the question broke
out, so that there was no large
crowd to push us, Whatever

anyone may say, this is evident. -

I well remember that Mr. Kato
struck me from behind me. But
when 1 reflect on the scene now,
I suppose Mr. Kato never did so
with a malicious intent, I im-
agine that he pulled me back to
prevent me from being involved
in an acclident, - not knowing
whether it was I or anybedy
else. At any rate that incident

with Mr. Itano, Mr. Nakamura,
Mr. Nakanishi, Mr. Hoso-
kawa, Mr. Iwama and, Mr.
Amada to iInterrupt the Presi-
dent in his ascending the ros-
trum. 1 mnever joined in the
secrum. 1 never took part in any
mass action. At that time, my
opinion was a little different

from that of my colleagues.’

There were only ten minutes
avallable for the plenary sitting.
I thought that it was impossible
to deal with the motions for
disciplinary measure and for the
vote of ®non-confidence within
such a short space of time. So,
while I was walking along the
western-side passage outside the
President’s reception room 1
shouted all the way, *‘ Let us
hold a plenary meeting, even if
we cannot hope to dispose of all
the items left on Today’s
agenda.” \?hen I entered the
Chamber, I saw Mr. Shimojo
standing on the platform. So,
I ascended the platform by
myself to pull him down there-
from. 1 think I got there before
others, and when 1 was getting
down from the platform, a large
number of my distinguished col-
leagues and others had rushed
up. 1 remember there were
many gurds among them. At
that time, my legs were beside
the seat of the President but
my body was stretched towards
the opposite western direction.
(Laughter) My foot was tram-
pled upon by some one whom 1
cannot identify. And so, 1
could not stand up straight. 1
am not sure if 1 was pushed on
the shoulders. At any rate, 1
was forced to polse myself
aslant, and then fell down. Ac-
cordingly,. I could not jump or
dive Into the crowd,.. as Mur.
Kusaba has just alleged that 1
did. I am no acrobat. Probably,
none could do so in my then
situation. During the China
Incident, I had a similar ex-
perience when hundreds of peo-
ple were pushed down on the
platfrom o¢f Kyoto Station.
Those killed were more than

protect my face from belng
troddenr. My chest was fre-
quently stepped upon by some-
body’s feet. Only those who
were near me know my posture
at that time. 1 made all efforts
to save my life. I only thought
how to escape from the pressure

of the crowd. It was not my *

question whether the President
was on the platform or not. My
question was how to save myself.
In fact, 1 was struggling to
cling to somebody, while my
chest was under someone’s feet.
I was painfully suffering from
the weight inereasing upon me.
I cried at last, ‘ Help, help!”
A guard reached me, and lifted
me upon the feet. This is the
true story. Probably 1 have
been blamed by mistake. Mr.
Kusaba’s statement was too far
from the truth. So far as the
incident on the platform is con-
cerned, I was a sufferer. If I
could identify a man who inten-
tionally trod on my chest, 1
would like to bring action
against him. But as it is"impos-
sible to find any positive proof,
I shall have to let the matter
20,

I believe that you have now
understood what I actually did
at that time. In conclusion, I
positively say that 1 should be
glad to say good-bye to the Diet,
if a motion to remove me from
the list of Diet members be
adopted by the House, and if it
be for the sake of the Diet.
But I shall have a grudge, 1f 1
be punished on some false

grounds. I demand that 1 be=

examined fairly. (Applause.)

The President: Mzr. Katsuji
Itano, please.

Mr. Katsuji Itano: Yesterday,
in closing his explanation of the
Motion to Discipline Mr. Asacka
and Five -Others, Mr. Juji
Nakano affirmed that his allega-
tion could be testified by Mr.
President, Mr. Seiichl Suzuki,
all the visitors admitted, and
me. 1 also have a firm convic-
tion that all the visitors in the
galleries eye-witnessed the scene

he was an eye-witness, he should
mention some other witnesses to

support him. He may try to
prove his assertion by newspaper
accounts, Having examined
newspapers, I found the follow-
ing account in the Yomiuri of
May 24. The caption was
“ Finger Language at Voting”
printed in bold type, and its
subtitle was ‘“ Upper House in
Uproar on Diet Session Exten-
sion.”’ Let me quote it. ¢ This
disorder continued, and when
members of the Liberal Party
and the R¥okufukal entered the
Chamber, President Matsudaira
approached the Chair escorted
by guards. At this time,
Messrs. Nakanishi, Itano and
Hesokawa of the Communists
and Mr. Masao Nakamura, for-
ming a serum, checked the Presi-
dent from taking the Chair,”
This was the account of the
Yomiuri. No. reference was
made to this either in the Mai-
nichl or in the Asahi. I do not
know how the said account came
to appear In the Yomiuri alone,
but 1 can testify that it is a
false report. As Mr. Kusaba
took up such a fabrication as
the basis of his explanation,
please allow me to tell him that
his political taetics is too in-
fantile. He ought to have ex-
amlned the reliability of that
report. If we are allowed to
presume that he offered the
material to the press, we shall
say that he is guilty of malfea-
sance. 1 believe that the ground-
lessness of this news will be
testified by Mr. President, Mr.
Nakano, Mr. Seiichi Suzuki and
the public admitted in the gal-
leries on that night.

Mr. Kusaba explained that we
intentionally checked Myz. Pre-
sident from taking his Chair by
our planned serummage. This
1s not only a false accusation
but a great insult to Diet mem-
bers. If a discipline needs to
be meted out, it must be given
to Mr. Kusaba. For a motion
to diseipline a Diet member,
conclusive evidence is the first
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53 X SO I | §uddenly strucl:: him back. happened i_n an insta:nt, so'that half a hundred. At that time, in an impartial frame of mind. req'ui_rement. | A& paint B 2
- 'i‘he P Diaileats T This 1s a 1‘ea:l fait;,. (Laughtel*; I had no time to' tl?lnk with a I was pressed down and tried Mr. Kusaba alleged that a serum pollt}cal morality, _I always make X
S M e Plccordin B membir cried, “ A matter ‘of cool head. But it is a matter to stand up with all my might. formed by Mr. Nakamura, Mr. a point of not being misguided :
ly it has been 1*e'e.cted b t}% c‘omise! o e e Salfi’ R e el R I struggled to erect myself and Nakanishi, Mr. Hosokawa, Mr. by a false report, nor of making jl
Halte g )-] y ule  «¢« What nonsense, fool!” Again :?,h?uld‘ have happened, althoug?l clung to another’s body. Many Iwama, Mr. Hara, Mr. Amada, any sort Of_fabr.lcation. I am i
(The' Vibe’ Dromabiat tath vk Mr Kusaba sa}d that I l?ea!; Mr it is not. clear what ‘had moti- people were struggling with and me interfered with Mr., sure that this principle is sub-
Chair, and the President t oli SNUGCReTCXa L HpCs bu!; 1t 1s an  vated Mr. .Kato tf’ strike me, each other to stand up. I can- Presidznt in the performance of scribed +to _by all* ladies and =
it.) (:@ lause.) : utter ialsehood. It, is a fact ~ The incident -in the House not remember how 1 esecaped his duty. I wonder how he could gentlemen -in this House with 5
. - . that that moment Mr Tkeda, plenary sitting has been stated out of the heaps of fallen people. make up such a false accusation. the sole exception of Mr. k-
Parliamentary ~Vice Minister, one-sidedly. Particularly, Mr. It was the same with me in the Needless to say Dietmen should Kusaba. ;

The.President: Have you any who was beside me, dealt a  Kusaba’s explanation gave me incident in question. As I was w6t *all g Tha, - Bat My Kusabs Further, Mr. Kusaba alleged q
objection to taking up for dis- blow to me. There was a quar- an impression that he has no tnder the heap of many per- seems to be a good fabricator that our acts were agains: the 3
cussion the Ist Item on the rel between Mr.Kato and myself, first hand knowledge. Accord- sons, I could not see whether or  of stories. The rostrum in this Constitution -of Japan and ocur g
-Agenda viz., Motion for Dis- and it had no connection with ing 'to him, I formed a serum not i‘I:he- President was on the Chamber is not a stage of a intention was to start a revolu- -x

platform. I only struggled to vaudeville. If he asserts that tlon by resorting to violent force. "
——— == & - i:1
' ' | e e =

b o SN 2




i

E
|

-

i

LS

- ‘ ’ F Ell -
L o L
s e, .. ol C e . e

kil

R

I must now prove that we have
never contravened any provisions
of the Constitution, of the Diet
Law, or of the Rules of this
House, since the inauguration of
the first Diet session. In decid-
g - whether we should be disci-
plined or not, this point should
be taken into your first con-
sideration. Therefore, in the
first place, I want to take up a
question of who was it that
actually igmnored the Constitu-
tion, the Diet Law and the
Rules of this House. Without
clarifying it, I cannot conclude
this explanation of my personal
conduct. _

It 1s mentioned in the
preamble of our Constitution:
““ Government. is a sacred trust
of the people, the powers of
which are exercised by the
representatives of the people,
and the benefits of which are
enjoyed by the people. Thigs is
a universal principle of mankind
upon which this Constitution is
founded, “ We reject and revoke
all  constitutions, laws, or-
dinances, and rescripts in
conflict herewith.” We can
therefore declare that the con-
cept of human rights form the
premise and foundation of the
principles of government by the
people and as the trust of
the people. Herein lies the
substantial character of our new
Constitution.

What, then, do the human
rights mean? It is misinter-
pretation of the human rights
that has hampered or distorted
the Diet proceedings since the
first session of the National
Diet. According to the .
“ Lectures on the New Consti-
tution *’; copies of which are
distributed to you, the human
rights are defined on p. 151 of
the book as follows: ¢ The
human rights in question, un-
less they are recognized in the
Constitution, the basic law of
State, cannot have their legal

force. For this reason it is

considered they -are to be in-
cluded among what we call
rights in the general sense.” It
further goes to say: “ To be
sure, the fundamental human
rights must be those secured
not only by the Constitution of
Japan but by the laws and other
substantial ordinances, ete. to
be legislated hereafter. Never-
theless, are we to be satisfied

~ with the said interpretation of

the human rights which would
confine them within such a
limited scope? Furthermore,
many scholars have so far
classified rights into publiec and

private rights, and then, the
public rights into three groups
of the rights of freedom and of
interest and political rights.”
S0 saying, the author touches
the key point regarding the
basic human rights saying: 1
believe 1t requires a re-exami-
nation of the conception itself
which leoks upon them simply
as what are recognized and
guaranteed by laws of State, in
order to justly grasp the con-
cept of basic human rights.
Secondly, it 1is necessary to
re-examine the said three
categories of rights now gener-
ally, adopted, I ecannot think
the classification can satis-
factorily cover all sorts of basic
human rights. New eatagories
of social and economie rights
must be - recognized for the
future. For instance, that all
are equal before the law is a

basic principle of the fun- _

damental human rights stipu-
lated in the Constitution. But
1s it true that all people are
and can be, and are entitled
to be equal before the law
because it is recognized by the
Law? It is needless to say
that equality of all people be-
fore the law ec¢an never be
realized, however it is demand-
ed through social movements,
unless it is recognized by the
law that all people shall be
treated equally irrespective of
sex, race or lineage. So it
seems that the conception that
rights are .what the law re-
cognizes as such applies to this

~case. However, our c¢laim that

we are, can be, and are entitled

to be equal before the law may -

motivate a tenacious social
movement for attaining equality
through revision of objectionable
provisions of the actual law, in
case the law of a country does
not recognize people’s equality
before the law. (Many utter-
ances calling for attention of
the Chair.) Mr. President!
Call the House to order, please!
(Members: What’s the use of
reading a book aloud on the
restrum ?) This forms the basic
for my statement. (Many
utterances) Mr. Presidant!
Gall the Members to order!

The President: Mr. Itano! 1
remind you to keep to your
applogetic explanation.

Mr. Itano: This is the premise
of my statement. Be patient—.
Then I omit the citation. Arts.

11, 12, 97, 98, and 99 provide
general for the fundamental
human rights in this regard,
indicating that the respect for

S RAT

the fundamental human rights
iIs the goal of our political
development, and declaring that
all component members of the
State, organs, laws, ordinances
and imperial rescripts are
obligated to uphold and respect
them. But this principle has
not always been observed faith-
fully since the first session of
the National Diet. And, Arts.
18, 19, 20, 21, 22 and 23 provide
for the right of freedom which
is, not such a right of freedom
guaranteed against the abuse of
administrative power s could
be restrained by legislative
power as under the former
Imperial Constitution, but is
conceived as a right of freedom
which cannot be restrained by
legislative power itself. But
those provisions are greatly
neglected. The neglect is
consplcuously expressed in the
National public Service Law.
With regard to the right to work
i Art. 27, the right of workers
to organize in Art. 28, the right
of eduecation in Art. 26, which
are of the social or economic
nature, violation of the Constitu-
tion 1s evident in the deforma-
tion of the Trade Union Law
and 1n dealing with the 6-3
school year system. The blame
for the viclation must be laid
with the successive Cabinets
since the enforcement of the
New Constitution. And it is the
conservative Members forming
a majority in this House that
have eooperated with those
Cabinets in committing viola-
don of the Constitution. So
Mr. Kusaba’s accusation laid
against us of violation of the
Constitution must be given back
to him ““in its original form.?’
(Applause) -

~ We have always observed the
provisions of the Constitution
this is very Important for my
personal justification. On May
23—last day of the fifty session,
the Communists objected strong-
ly to the extension of the ses-
sion. Because we do not want
to consider the Personnel Fixed
Number Bill, the Foodstuffs
Security Temporary Measures
Bill, Partial Amendment +to
Foodstuffs Control Law, Bill of
Exceptions for Succession to
Agricultural Assets, ete. which
are against the interests of the
public. |

The President (Mr. Tsuneo
Matsudaira): I wish Mr. Itano
to speak within the limit of the
question.

Mr. Katsuji Itano: While

there is the personnel reduction, _

the setup of parliamentary

e —

counselor system 1is planned and

the sale of government railways
is also under the scheme. For
this reason, we are not in favor
of the prolongation of session.
The large-scaled personnel re-
duction, the compulsory collec-
tion of foods, the revival of
patriarch system, ete. produced
by the aforesaid bills are con-
tradictory to Articles 14, 25 and
27 of the Constitution. (A mem-
ber: ‘““ You go beyond the sub-
ject.””) Now that these bills do
not contribute to the reconstruc-
tion of this country, we have
behaved ourselves in accordance
with the freedom of thought and
conselence guaranteed by Art.
19 of the Constitution. We have
fought it ott for the legal
defense, abiding by the pro-
visions of Diet Law and Rules
of HC.

Some conservative members
belive In mistake that 1t is faith-
ful to the national administra-
tion to consider the bills intro-
duced before the House and to
enact all of them. But Art. 68
of the Diet Law provides that
matters which was not approved
in one session will not be auto-
matically deliberated in the next
session. This rule shows that
the way of thinking entertained
by the conservative parties is
not correct. What was the} at-
titude toward the extension of
session taken by the Yoshida
Cabinet? On May 16—a few
days prior to the end of the
session, the Chief Cabinet
Secretary said at the House
Management Committee that
that problem should be solved
by the House. Mr. Kanie of the
Socialists asked the Prime Min-
ister to extend the session for

the reason that the papers con-
cerned welghed as much as 1
‘““kan ”? 800 ‘“ momme ”’, To this,
the Prime Minister arrogantly
asserted to extend it for 7 days
on the strength of majority.
Mr. Kadoya. of the Demoecrats
supported 10-day prolongation.
We, the Communists, were
against the extension of session.
The vote being taken, 7-day ex-
tension was approved as mem-
bers of the Liberal Democrats
and *“ Ryokufu Kai’’ desired.
The opinion of the Democrats
was defeated. At the end of
the session-—-on May 23, the
Government together with the

- Demoecratic-Liberal and ¢ Ryoku-

fu Kai” could not ask for the
further extension any more.
Needless to say, the period of
session should be decided by the
House. But .the Government has
always interfered with the mat-

ter. Such,action is not provided

for In the Diet Law, but is
beyond the compass of the
Government. According to
Articles 11, 12 and 13 of the
Diet Law, the period of ex-
traordinary and special session
iIs determined by the both
Houses; the session c¢an be ex-
tended by them; in case there
1S no agreement between the
Houses, the Lower House decides
it. (Some members: ¢ We
know.””) If the Houses did not
approve the prolongation of

‘session on May 23, the House

would have as a matter of course
adjourned on that day. The
majority of the Upper House
compelled the House to extend
the session, ignoring all the
reasonable procedures. This is
due to the unsatisfactory pro-
visions of the Diet Law. (Some
members: ‘“ No.”’")

According to the stenographic
record of the House Manage-
ment Committee, the Chief
Cabinet Secretary proposed to
the President of the House the
prolongation of session at 8 p.m.
on May 23, and also did so
before the Management Com-
mittee resumed at 9.25 p.m. At
that time I attended the Agri-
culture and Forestry Committee
for the debate and vote as to
the Amemdment to Foodstuffs
Maintenance Temporary Mea-
sures Law and the Amendment
to Foods Conlrol Law. Being
present at the Management Com-
mittee reopened at 10.25 p.m., I
found that that committee took
a recess until 10.25 p.m. to re-
quest for the Prime Minister’s
attendance. (A member: ¢ Why
does the President make him
speak besides his personal justi-
fication ?”’) This 1s  very im-
portant for vindication. (A
member: ¢ It 1s dogmatic?’) I
think it 1s quite necessary for
me to explain what I conducted
in the Management Committee
as well as in the House Cham-
ber. : |
- Let me speak about the
Steering Committee, which
opened at 9:25 p.m. Mryr. Naka-
mura wanted to hear explana-
tions from the Prime Mihister
himself, who represented the
Cabinet, and he (Mr. Nakamura)
refused to recognize the Chief
of the Cabinet as representative
of the Cabiret. The Prime
Minigter has rarely been:.....

The President: The - Chair
cautions the speaker.

Mr. Itano (continuing): His

The President: The Chair
cautions the speaker not to go

e S

beyond an explanation about
his personnel position.

Mr. Itano (continuing): I am
speaking about my personnel
position. The Prime WMinister,
I learned, was not coming. On
the reopning of the Committee
at 10:25 p.m. therefore, I tried
to move, by raising a hand,
that the Prime Minister should
be asked to attend, but this
collided with the motion asking
for the presence of another
Minister. The Chairman of the
Steering Committee took no
notice of my motion, in defi-
nance of the HC Rules and in
spite of the fact that I was
asking recognition by raising a
hand, as I have just said. The
Chairman, Mr. Umehara, put to
the standing vote the motion to
hear the Deputy Premier, and
ignored my motion. So the
Committee heard explanations
of My, Hayashi, Deputy
Premier. As the Prime Minister
had a cold, he said, the Min-
I1sters advised him to rest
especlally during the night.
The Prime Minister desired to
have the Session prolonged by
two more days—Mr. Hayashi
stated-—as there were  still
important Bills outstanding as
the Session was nearly up.
Hereupon, I again asked leave
to speak.,

What transpired at the
Steering Committee is extremely
important, for the problem
concerning myself and Mr.
Kaniye 1is closely connected
with the conduet of proceedings
at that Committee. After a
good deal of trouble, 1 obtaired
leave to speak. Let me recabi-
tulate what 1 said. The Chief
Secretary of the Cabinet appe-
ared here the other day. There
was a discrepancy between what
he then said and the previous
statement of the Secretary-
General of the Diet. According
to the latter, the Prime Minister
was unable to attend the
Committee because of *“ unavoid-
.able circumstances’—a vague
expression, The Committee
asked what the unavoidale
circumstances were, and the
Chief Secretary said tha:t the
Prime Minister had a cold. His
statement did not exactly tally
with what the Secretary-General
had previously stated. Pointing
out the diserepancy, therefore, I
asked an answer about the
““sabotage’ on the part of the
Prime Minister. Seemingly, he
took refuge behind the sereen of
‘““illness ’’, when he had to face
the musiec. However, the
Government commanded an
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absolute majority, and so the
responsibility of the Demoeratic-
Liberal Cabinet, I pointed out,
was particularly heavy. The
Prime Minister could not dispose
~ of his responsibility, I asserted,

by stating simply that he stayed
at Oiso because of a cold. At
such a critical juncture for the
nation, a slight cold should not
prevent him from attending to
affairs of State. His non-appear-
ance here revealed the want of
sincerity on his part. This was
a great hindrance, 1 declared,
to the government of the country,
particularly at a time like the
present. The Democratic-Liberal
Government was behaving
arrogantly on account of its
majority in the Diet. The
contempt of the Honse or the
Diet should never be tolerated,
for its effects on the people
were extremely serious. If his
1llness were =0 serious, we would
never think of raising a question
like this. TUntil he attended the
Committee, 1 insisted, the
Committee should not resume
sitting. A member or members
of the Secretariat-General
should be sent to the Prime
Ministry, to make sure if his
illness did not really permit him
to attend the Committee. Mean-
while the Committee should
remaln adjourned. This was
the import of my motion.

The Committee Chairman,
however, did not care to put
this motion to the vote. Instead
he gave Mr. Yano leave to
speak (interruptions). Hereupon,
Mr. Nakamura raised a point of
order. Before Mr. Yano’s
motion was:..-.. |

The President: The Chair
cautions the speaker not to go
beyond explanations of his
personal position.

Mr. Itano (continuing): I am
explaining my personnal posi-

tion (interruptions)-:--.. I ask the
Chair will call Members to
order (Interruptions) «:---. Mr.

Nakamura raised a point of
order, because. Mr. Yano's
motion should be taken up, if at
all, after and not before my
motion was put to the vote.
The procedure the Chairman
followed was utterly wrong.
This was what Mr. Nakamura
sald in protest. While 1 was
asking for leave to speak, M.
Kadoya, who acted like a bull
in the china-shop, raised a point
of order. At long last, how-
ever, the Chairman gave me
leave to speak. Thus I got the
chance to speak for a second
time. I again raised the ques-
tion ‘of the Prime Minister’s

‘““illness.” If the Government
or the Secretariat of the Diet,

for that matter, had given
information as to his illness, I
asserted, there would have been
no disorder in Committee
(Cheers.) Permit me to quote
from the Record what 1 then
sald : "

““The "Prime  Minister is
sabotaging the Diet, though this
18 nothing new. He is lording
it over the Diet, but he is no
more than a public servant.
We are representatives of the
people, legislating on their
behalf. Since he is a public
servant, he cught to be attend-
ing to his duties, even though
he has got a slight cold. For a
man who has the pretension
to shovlder the responsibility of
government, a slight cold ought
to be no hindrance, especially
at such a time like the present.
I would like to ask the Chair-
man to agree that the Committee
adjourn until the appearance of
the Prime Minister.?” --....
(Interruptions)---...

At that time we said in
addition. (A member: Aye you
not going to repeat what you

sald in the Steering Committee ?)

I am justifying myself. (Some
members: Order, order. It is
none of your business. Hear,
hear.) 1 ask the President to
put the House in order. (Some
members : It 1s Communist
Party who disturbs. Be quiet
and listen, if you have a clear
conscience.) (The House is in
an uproar.) I ask the President
to put the House in order. 1
never disturbed the proceedings
In order to carry on the pro-
ceedings smoothly I was very
particular about the quorum
until a few days ago. “But since
yvesterday I have overlooked the
absence of quorum except when
it was needed for voting. The
members of Committee, far
from disturbing the proceedings,
have tried to ecarry it on
smoothly. HC have repeatedly
violated the explicit provision of
the Constitution with regard to
the quorum. On that night we
felt the need to aet strictly in
accordance with the rule as the
extension of the term is a pro-
blem of great importance.

In the nexi place, the Prime
Minister is said to have taken
a slight ecold, but it was not
made clear how feverish he was
or in what condition he was or
where he was at that time. At
that important stage of pro-
ceedings, Mr. Kadoya made an
important utterance with regard
to the interpretation of Articles

S

11, 12 and 13 of the National
Diet Law. His purpose was to
eliminate the cause of disorder
by making clear whether Article
13 means that even in case HC
does not make decision HR will
And my

have the priority.
further utterances centred on

the problem of the said Articles

introduced by Mr. Kadova. A
little afterward, the chairman
Umehara announced that ‘“with
regard to Mr. Itano’s utterance,
I ask the Vice Premier to tell
us the condition of the Prime
Minister.”’ Deputy Premier
Hayashi’s statement was as
follows: ¢ The Prime Minister
has taken a slight cold as I told
you when I asked for the exten-
sion of the termi. And we
advised him to take a rest at
night.”” We were offended at
this unsatisfactory reply. No
member except the Demoecratic
Liberals could overlook such an
insolent answer. (Cheers.) All
the members, except the Demo-
cratic Liberals and a part of
the Ryokufu-kai, were indignant
at the attitude of the Prime
Minister who had neglected the
National Diet. When 1 was
about to put another interpella-

tion regarding the Vice
Premier’s answer, Mr. Hidezo
Kobayashi interrupted me

saying, ‘“ on this oeccasion,”” but

I pressed for his answer because -

my question was ‘‘releatad ’’ to
it. Mr. KXKobayashi, however,
insisted that the ¢‘“chairman
recognized me’ and as for me

. I told him that mine was

‘“related Vo " 46 The. Vice
Premier Hayvashi:----- Mir. Koba-
yashl, c¢rying ‘‘Be quiet. I
prepose a motion,”” continued
his speech. This is the origin of
that great confusion and dis-
order. And the Chairman took
up Mr. Kobayashi’s opinion who
belongs to  the Demoeratice

Liberal Party. Mr. Kobayashi

interrupted me from putting
further interpellation to the
Vice Premier. Thls the most
scandalous condition of the
Steering Committee since - the
first session of HC reached its
climax. (Some members: You
are right. Hear, hear.)

Now let me read the related
part of the stenographie record
of the Committee. Mzr. Koba-
yashl’s motion stands as follows:
‘““ As the term is expiring, I pro-
pese 1ts extension” (A member:
Some member is speaking.) and
““dispensing with debate on its

propriety or otherwise: “ We

shall proceed to the voting on

the period of extension.” (A
member: 1 support it.)

The Chairman (Mr. Shinryu
Umehara): Have you any objec-

tion to the voting? (A member:

No objection.)

Mr. Katsvji Itano: I am mak-
ing further interpellation with
regard to the Vice Premier’s
answer. (Some member: 1 can
not hear. What sort of voting?)

Myr. Katsuji Itano: What is
the Chairman doing?

The Chairman (Mr. Shinryu
Umehara): Those who are in
favor of the motion:-----

(Some members: Non confi-
dence in the Chairman. Recess,
recess.)

(The Committee 1s in an up-
roar.)

The Chairman (Mr. Shinryu
Umehara): We will take a
recess. 11:32 p.m.

The Committee meeting was
reopened at 11.47 p.m. I will
read part of the stenographice
record, for 1t 1s very necessary

to go on with my speech.

The Committee Chairman (Mr.
Shinryu Umehara): Those oth-
er than the Members of my Com-

‘mittee are requested to leave the

chamber. (Some members: ‘““You
have no right to make such a
request,” *“ You have not consul-
ted us about reopening of the
meeting.” “Absurd!’ Many
other utterances. The meeting
was thrown into confusion.)
Those other than the Members
of my Committee are requested
to leave the chamber. We shall
now reopen the meeting. (The
meeting was in an uproar. Many
utterances.) - (Some member:
‘“1 have a question to ask.”
Those other than the members
of my Committee are requested
to leave the chamber. (Some
members: ‘“ How rude of you
to demand the members of the
House to leave the chamber! 1
am a House member.”” ‘“Stop
taking  stenographie notes.”
““You have not called reopening
of the meeting.””? *“Ozrder!”
““The meeting has not been re-
opened.’’ |

Mr. Torio Yano: I move for

two days’ prolongation of the
presént Session. (Some members:

““The meeting has not been re-
opened. No motion must be
proposed.”” The meeting was in
(Some members:
““1 second his motion.” “1I re-
ject his motion.” The meeting

an uproar.)

was In an uproar.)

The Committee Chairman:
Those other than the Members
of my Committee are requested

to leave the Chamber.

"The members seconding his
motion are requested to stand

. up.

(A majority of members stand
up )

The Committee Chairman: 1
see a majority is in favor. Ac-
cordingly, his motion has been
carried by the Committee. The
meeting adjourns. (The meeting
was in an uproar. Some mem-
bers: ‘“ The meeting has not ad-
journed.”” ‘“ Adjourn!” *“The
plenary meeting has been re-
opened In the House. The plen-
ary meeting has been reopened
in the House.”” Many other ut-
terances. The meeting was in
an uproar.)

The Committee meeting ad-
journed at 11.49 p.m.

The bells rang for reopening
of the plenary meeting while
the meeting was In an uproar,
These proceedings of the Diet
Operation Committee prove that
the Committee Chairman lack
the ability for operation of his
Committee. I do not intend to
attack his personnal character
on the platform. If the same
Committee had continued their

debates conscientiously and the.

Vice Prime Minister or the Sec-
retary-General of the Cabinet
had vicariously apologized for
the Prime Minister’s sabotage in
national government most of the

Committee Members would have |

pardoned him. The Government,
instead of taking such action,
conspired to throw the same
Committee into an uproar and
intended prolongation of the

present Session and passage of

the important Bills. The Yoshi-
da Cabinet disregarded the Diet
and the Prime Minister attended
the plénary meetings only eight
times in the 5th Session. As
the bell rang for reopening of
the plenary meeting, I hurried
inte the House floor.

When 1 entered the Chamber,
I saw Mr. Ko Nakanishi of our
Party going toward the seat of
the Chief of the Proceedings
Department. 1 followed him.
The President was already in
the Chamber surrounded by a
number of guards. 1 saw Mr.
Asaoka doing something display-
ing his physical . strength,
slightly bending his big frame
forward. I saw his body with
my own eyes. 1 could approach
neither the President nor the
Chief of the Proceedings Depart-
ment. I shouted that an Opera-
tion Subcommittee  meeting
should be opened. The President
himself must be able to tell
whether 1 interrupted him or
only spoke to him. I asked him
several times to hold a Subcom-
mittee meeting. =1 asked the
President to open a Committee

_— Y —

meeting, standing where the
Prime Minister usually sits. Just
then, I heard a member asking
the President to hold a Com-
mittee meeting for one minute.
Mr. Kusaba says that our
request to have a one minute
Committee meeting was what
we had plotted beforehand. But
is'nt it clear that several men
cannot ascend this
shoulder to shoulder? We had
no time to assemble for talking
over the steps to be taken. All
the members of the Subcommittee
and other members entered the
Chamber in haste and none had
time to talk with each other. As

rostrum

Myr. Nakanishi was a reserve

man of the Diet Operation Sub-

committee, it was his duty to
consult with the President or

the Chief of the Diet Proceed-

ings Department regarding the
House steering. I only followed
him. I heard several times a
volce asking the President to
hold a Committee meeting for
one minute. 1 remember 1t was
the voice of Mr. Toraichi Hara
of the Social Democratic Party.
I know that Mr. Hara had no
intention of interrupting the
President. 1 think he is worthy
of praise feor his asking the
President to hold a Committee
meeting of one minute, as it
would expedite the proceedings.
I made my way to the front of
the seat of the House Secretary-
General. This i1s obvious from
the picture taken at that
moment. I was prevented by
the throng of members from
approaching  the President.
When 1 looked up to the chair
standing in front of the seat of
the House Secretary-General, 1
heard Mr. Nakanishi saying to
the Vice President that thz
motion for discipline should Le
considered = first of all and
reproaching him for taking the
chalr 1n disregard of the
President. In the meantime, the
plenary meeting was adjourned,
I do not mean to apologize. 1
declare that I never joined a
scrum. No member formed a
scrum. It is fthe right of the
members and reserve men of the
Diet Operation Subcommittee to
come up to the seat of the Pre-
sident, the House Secretary-
General, or the Chief of the
Proceedings Dept. to talk over
the proceedings. Article 55,
Paragraph 2 of the WNational
Diet Law provides, ‘ The Presid-
ent may consult only with a
subcofmmittee selected by the
Diet Operation Committee
concerning the order of proceed-
ings and cther matters which he
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deems necessary,

to agree.”
provision, the

decide on the
consultation and
meeting. The

not be adopted.

the members
applied.

1S usual that the

cular ocecasion, the
a plenary meeting,

prior to it. The President should
have consulted with the members

of the Diet Operation Subcommit-

tee on the issue of the extension

of the session and the motion for

discipline of Mr. Junsuke Itaya.
Therefore, each Subcommittee
member asked the President to
hold a Subcommittee meeting.
The President violated the
established wusage. That the
Subcommittee members demand-
ed the President at the plenary
meeting to hold a Subcommittee
meeting was obviously a legiti-
mate action in the light of the
House of Councillors Rules.
Article 213 of the Rules provides
that none shall ascend the
rostrum without the President
leave. But we are not prohibit-
ed from going to any place
other than the rostrum. There
18 no provision to that effect.
There is no such a usage since
the time of the House of Peers,
We are allowed to go to any
place without the Presidefit’s
leave except to the rostrum. It
1s no violation of the National
Diet Law or any other rules to
g0 to the chair for consultation.
Members of HR go to the chair
of that House. But none of the
members of that House who did
so have ever been punished. No
member has ever been punished
for going up to the chair to
make negotiation concerning

proceedings. It is a matter of

course. None are allowed to

take the rostrum without the
President’s leave. But it is not
a violation of the National Diet

- —_ —_ e ————— .. g ———— o — — e e ————— ——

however he
-shall not be bound by their

opinions in case they have failed
Regarding this
Diet Operation
Committee of this House decided
as follows: The President should
matters for
convene the
subcommittee
should be the consultative organ
of the President. The principle
of decision by majority should
Unlike the
usage of ordinary Committee
meetings, the quorum of half
should not be
A meeting may be
opened 1f more than one mem-
ber of respective parties are
present. Under this decision, it
President
convenes a subcommittee meet-
ing prior to a plenary meeting
and there fixes the ecalendar of
proceedings. But on this parti-

President
had the bell rung ex officio for

- brought the
- confusion by

without
holding a subcommittee meeting

Law or any other rules t0 make
negotiations at a place except

the rostrum.

For these two reasons Article
213 of the Rules of HC is not to
be applicable to the aects of the
members against whom My,
Kusaba has moved for disciplin-
ary action, Never did I prevent
the President from taking the
chair. I have already referred
to the confusion at the meeting
of the Diet Operation Committee.
I will now judge of the matter
from the viewpoint of the rule.
Article A8 of the said Rules
prescribes, ““ A committee mem-
ber may offer a motion to close
interpellation or debate,”” and
Article 49, “ When the delibera-
tlon of a committee is finished,
the chairman shall bring the
matter to a vote, after announ-
cing the cubjects.” The Com-
mittee Chairman seems to have
meeting into
ignoring these
provisions. Article 42 prescribes,
“ A member can interpellate
freely and express his views on
subjects. In case requests to
speak are made by members the
Chairman will recognize the
members in order of such
requests.’”” The Chairman being
indifferent to this provisisn,
recognized the members regard-
less of the order. The confusion
was caused not only by the
reckless acts of members
belonging to the Démocratic
Liberal Party and the ¢ Ryoku-
fu-kai’’ relying on numbers, but
besides also by lack of the
ability to steer the proceedings
on the part of the Chairman.
Next I will refer to the confu-
sion and the manner of pro-
ceedings at the plenary House
meeting at that time. Article
56 of the Constitution of J apan
preseribes that “ business eannot
be transacted unless one-third
or more of total membership is
present,”” and Article 84 of the
sald Rules provides that,” when
the members present do not
constitute a quorum at the
begining of the session, the
President shall not open the
sitting. When attendance falls
below a quorum, owing to the
departure of members from
their seats during the sitting,
the President may declare a
recess or the adjournment of the
sitting.””  The problem of a
quorum has often been ignored
both In the Committee meeting
and in the plenary House
session. (A member: ‘It has
nothing to do with your apologe-
tic explanation.”) I wish to
touch on this point on this oc-

___..8_____

casion, thongh it may ‘seem
superfluous. Article 214 of the
said Rules preseribes, * Every-
one shall be silent when the
President rings the bell.’? I
don’t know whether the bell has
ever been rung at the other
House and whether or not any
bell is put anywhere about the
President’s seat of this House.
If the bell had been rung in
time in accordance with this
provision, such confusion might
not have ensued. The President
should have exerted his vested
right. Next, according to Article
21 of the Diet Law, the Viece
President is to perform the
functions of the President when
the latter is absent or the office
1s vacant. The Vice President
performed the President’s
functions arbitarily in spite of
the fact that the President was
by no means prevented from
being present at the House at
that time. This was one of the
important causes 'of the con-
fusion. Next, as to whether the
motion taken up for discussion
now 1s valid or not. The matter
was not approved by this House
on 23rd; it is obvious from the
provision of Articles 11, 12 and
13 +0of ~ the. . Diet. Faw. ~The
phrase, ‘“the decision of HR
shall prevail’” is not to be
applicable to this case; because
the Diet was already closed at
that time—My. Nakamura, of
the Social Democratic Party,
My. Fujita, of the Independent
Club, and I insisted on the
invalidity of the motion, which
matter, however, was not taken
up at the plenary meeting.
Article 136 of  the said Rules
prescribes, ‘“ Before a vote is
taken, the President shall
announce the matter for voting
to ,the House.”” However, the
President did not announce the
matter. Article 137 says. “In
taking a vote, the President
shall ask the members who are

‘in favor of the proposed matter

under discussion to rise from
their seats, and having ascer-
tained whether they are in the
majority or minority, shall
announce 'the result of the
voting.”” But the President did
not obey this. Article 143 pre-
scribes, ‘“ On any matter before
the House, the President may
ask the House whether any
member has gn objection. If
there 1s no objection, he shall
declare the matter passed by the
House.”” But the stenographic
records show he did not give
any declaration. The motion
was not dealt with in accord-
ance with the provisions of the

. Rules
declare that it is invalid.

House of
adjourned and the House of

Councillors:-----

advises you to

of HC. Therefore, I

What I recall from this illegal

proceedings of the House is the
meeting heild on December 9,
1947, when the
were taken up by 1t in its l1st
Session.
come to entertain a doubt akout
the Stenographic Record Law.
This 1s important for disproving
the validity of the present case.
On that ocecasion, the clock of
this Chamber was stopped--an
unprecedented event so far. It
was I who uncovered the fact
and asked the reason for doing
so. On that day, the House of
Representatives
11:56 p.m.

Kodan laws

Since then, 1 have

adjourned at

The President: Mr. Itano,......

My, Itano (continuing): The
Representatives

The Chair
confine your

The President:

tkem are -
the President, the Vice Presid-

ent, the Chairman of the Diet
Operation Committee and the
majority members of the Govern-
ment Party.

none c¢ther than

Further, I should like to touch

upon the problem of revolution
by foree, to which Mr. Ryuen

Kusaba referred a while ago.
However, as 1 have no time to
do so, this matter may be left
to my colleagues. 1 am mnot
taking floor to delay the deli-
heration on the motion of
diseipline. 1 am here to protect
the Constitution, the Diet Law
and the Rules of HC. (Cheers.)

In concluding my personnal
explanation, 1 firmly believe
that the members of such

Opposition Parties as  the
Communist Party and the
Socialist Party have strictly
observed these laws and
regulations. (A member :
“ What about the oeccurrence

of the 23rd?”’)

The responsi-

causes. But an explanation of
this will take five or six hours,
even if it is confined to that of
my personal position.
current Diet session is to be
closed tomorrow, I shall not
have at my disposal the neces-

As the

sary time for that. As to the
question which of the motions
should be referred to the Discip-
line Committee, 1 believe, as
explained at the meeting of the
House Operation Committee, that
all of them should be committed
to that body, because it is au-
thorized to examine what has
been submitted to this House
with the alleged facts and evi-
dences bearing on the matter.
With this observation on the

first point, I am going to rebut

Mr. Kusaba’s allegation. The

day before yesterday, while lis-
tening attentively to his speech,
I could not help being indign-
ant, particularly at his false

charge against myself and other
But 1

members of my Party.

speech to your personnel ex-

Agriculture and
Committee of HC met when a
bill was forwarded from the
other House. But no stenogrg-
phie record
conformity with the _
graphic Record Law. According
to this shorthand record, the

planation.

Mr. Itano (continulng): The
Forestry

was taken in
Steno-

Agriculture and Forestry
Committee of HC met at 11 E56
p.m,, but the time of 1ts

adjournment is not recorded.

The President: The Chair

reminds you again.

Mr. Itano (continuing): This

is my personal explanation.

The President: The Chair 18

asking to limit the speech to
your personal explanation.

Mr. Itano (continuing): This
iIS an extremely Important
problem. This concerns a viola-
tion of the Diet Law and the
Rules of HC. Further, this

proves that even the stenogra-

phic record cannot be relied on.
I am now explaining these
facts. Recalling the occasion 1
have just mentioned, 1 regret to
say that such a case has been
repeated once more. 1 regret
to see again the fact that the
Diet Law and the Rules of HC
have been violated iIn the name
of majority. -

We have been fighting but
strictly observed the Constitu-
tion, the Diet Law, and the Rules
of HC. The Socialist Party,
the Communist Party and the
Independent Club have fought
in a lawful way, without
violating any of these }aws and
regulations. Those who violated

bility of ignoring the Rules on
the 23rd should be borne by
members of the Government
Party and not by those of the
Opposition. 1 feel honored if
the majority members of the
Government Party should want
to subject me to the disecipline
by dhe sheer numerical strength
—me who have strictly observed
these laws and vregulations—

because this case will plainly
tell to the people of this country
and to those of other democratic
countries that these laws and
regulations are really violated
by the majority strength. I am
undergo such a

willing to

discipline. (Cheers.)

The President take a recess
until half past one In the after-

noon.

(The House rose for a recess

at 0:35 p.m.)

The President: The House is
now ready to resume its busi-
ness. We will continue the dis-
cussion of the Disciplinary Mo-

tion comprising the 1st ltem of
The House will

the Agenda.

will speak of the following two
points, on this occasion.

First: Mr. Kusaba concluded
that the alleged event was a
planned mass-action. Mr. Itano
already denied this allegation.
As I am on the House Operation
Committee and also on its Sub-
committee, 1 want to clarify
this issue. All the Committee-
men and non-members present
at the meeting of that Com-
mittee held on May 23 must be
fully aware of the fact that it
was actually adjourned amidst
a commotion in which none
could understand whether or
not the motion to extend the
Diet session had been adopted.
At that time, we, members of
the Subcommittee, firmly believ-
ed that the question concerning
the Order of the Day would be
submitted to the subcommittee
by the President of this House.
This has been an established
usage with us and has never
been ignored for the past two
years. Its authority has been
generally accepted just as one
of the statutory law. So, we

listen to the explanations of the
respective members concerned.
Mr. Masao Nakamura, please.
Mr. Nakamura: I should like
to explain my stand on the Dis-
ciplinary Motion sponsored by
Mr. Ryuen Kusaba and one
other member on May 25. The
discussion of the incident that
oceurred during our plenary sit-
ting on about the midnight of
May 23, if one considers the
phenomenon alone, would lead

to a mistaken conclusion. We
have to uncover its underlying

L

never thought that it would be

disregarded by the .
himself. But, while I was wait-

ing in the President’s drawing
room expecting such a subc_om-
mittee meeting, I was surprised

to hear the bell ringing. Then, I

realized that the President, ignor-
ing the well-established usage,
ordered a plenary sitting of the
House at his own diseretion. So
I entered the Chamber by the_
nearest door without going back
to our anteroom. If we had a
plan as was alleged by Mr. Ku-

President

o
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saba, 1 should not have acted
in this way, Limited my ability
is, I could easily have postponed
the business of the House as
only ten minutes were, available
by it, for the said plenary sit-
ting. If I had a premeditated
plan, "I would not have ap-
proached the President, but
would have requested the Chief
1w0f the Proceedings Section to
have the motion to extend the
Diet session decided by an open
vote. That would easily take
ten or fifteen minutes. I would

never resort to such "awkward:

tactics as to negotiate with
the President by sending my
colleagues to him. If L had
explained this to them, none of
them would have ascended the
rostrum, firmly believing in my
maneuverings. This «will prove
‘that what occurred happened by
accident, and not on -account of
a set purpose, so that a confu-
sion followed. I ask Mr. Kusaba
to bear this fact in mind. Any-
way, I am deeply ired by his
false accusation and this, for
the sake of the prestige of this
House. In his condluding re-
mark, he said that he was ur-
ging the removal of certain
members in question overcoming
his personal sentiment, so that
the dignity of this House might

with the President for the mat-
ter, 1 went to the seat of the
Secretary General of the Houses
Secretariat and began to talk
over the matter with him. I
never negotiated with the Presi-
dent forming a serum. On what
ground Mr. Kusaba asserted I
interfered with the President I
don’t know, , If my case is re-
ferred to the Disciplinary Com-
mittee, 1 will fight it out by
producing counter-evidence., All
through two years of my life in
HC, it has been my primary
principle to strietly observe law
for the eause of democratic go-
vernment. Or rather, all through
the 35 years of my life, it has
been an inviolable principle with
me to act up in obedience of
the "spirit of law. When I be-
came aware of the presentation
of a motion for disciplining me,
I thought it .was because of
something improper I might have
sald at the Diet Operation Com-
mittee meeting. I had not rea-
lized before the explanation of
the matter by Mr. Kusaba at
the plenary House meeting
yesterday that it was on the
ground of an interference with
the performance of the Presid-
ent’s function that the motion
had been  presented., I feel in-
dignant at the motion by Mu.

be maintained. 1 positively af-
firm that it is Mr. Kusaba him-
self that has impaired the dign-
ity of this House, because he
fabricated a charge on the basis
of which he made a dogmatic
assertion,

In my case for discipline, it
1s alleged that I, forming a
scrum together with some fellow
members, interfered with the
performance of the President’s
duties, I,will explain this point
though I think it quite obvious
to you all that it is contrary to
the fact.

When I entered the Chamber
I found only a few persons. I
think that, I was the first to come
up to the platform. I took the
seat of the Director of the Busi-

ness Division in order to ask |

him whether my case was to be

g taken up prior to Mr. Itaya’s
| which had been brought before
the House by my motion for

disciplining him. This fact will

be testified by the Director of

the Business Division. When he

" came and was asked, he replied

; L

that my case might be taken

up first but he was not certain.

1 And then the President together
i with many other persons and
' guards was ascending to the
platform. Thinking that it was
of no use trying to negotiate

Kusaba, based on a falsehood
as 1t is. When my innocence
has been proved by the Discip-
linary Committee, I will move
for disciplining Mr. Kusaba and
one other mover for the sake of
my honor. ,This concludes my
apologetic explanation. (Ap-
plause.)

The President: Mr. Ko Naka-
nishi !

Mr. Nakanishi: I am going
to make a personal explanation
concerning the motion for dis-
cipline presented by Mr. Kusaba.

First, I will state my mental
attitude at that time. We mem-
bers of the Communist Party
have been categorically opposed
to such legislations as the Per-

_ sonnel Organization Table Law,

the University dLaw, the Food-
stuffs Control Law, the National
Hospital Special Account Law,
the Bank of Japan Revision
Law, and the like. We com-
munists believe that if these pro-
posed laws should be enacted by
the Diet, they would ruin our
national economy and the people
in this country. Therefore, we
conld not allow them to be pas-
sed.

Furthermore, those workers
and farmers who elected me as
one of representatives of the
people came to me every day to

e o

exhort my opposition to these
bad legislations, as their passage
was a vital problem for them.
This ecircumstance underlay my
strong opposition against these
measures. Moreover, in the Com-
mittee deliberation thereon, I
found certain anti-national and
destructive elements in these
Bills, so that I was determined
to hamper their enactment. To
fight for this purpose with all

my energy, I was econvinced, was -

the only way to perform the
sacred dvty entrusted to me by
the electors. Considering that
this eventuality was possible
under a given condition and
situation, I did everything in my
power to attain this end. I con-
sidered that my actions for this
purpose were a reasonable and
glorious one from the standpoint
of a Diet member. If I acted
contrary to the expectation of
working masses, I might be re-
called from the Diet. Con-
sequently, I fought not only to
fulfill the public promise of our
party but also in the interests
of the working masses of the
whole ccuntry who encouraged
me: every day to ‘do- g6.. .1
believed that this was the one
way to maintain the authority
and prestige of Councillors. It
was thus that I fought and
acted iIn all sincerity. I am
not ashamed of these actions
of mine.

In the next place, I will tell
the true story .about my actions
on the evening of the 23rd. The
whole affair did not happen
accidently. As explained in
detail by member Itano the
event resulted from the high-
handed behavior of the Govern-
ment and the Government party.
But, there is no need of repeat-
ing i1t here. *

On that -evening, I went to
the President’s room as the Diet
Operation Committee meeting
was plunged in ‘confusion.
There, chief Cabinet Secretary

Masuda and members of the

Government Party were request-
ing the President and the Secre-
tary General of the House to
open a ¥ plenary meeting. 1
guessed that they were attempt-
ing to hold a plenary meeting
before the Diet Operation Com-
mittee had reached a decision.
If so, I thought, it was a misuse
of the President’s authority. So
thinking, I immediately consult-
ed with Socialist members about
a motion for a resolution of
non-confidence in the President.
I went hastily to the Preceed-
ings Department. There, 1
wrote a text of the said re-

sclution and asked for signa-
tures of 1ts supporters. At this
time, the bell rang to tell the
opening of a plenary meeting,
and I entered the Chamber.
After consulting with Mr. Hara,
a Diet Operation Subcommittee
member of the Soccialist Party,
about an opening of Subcom-
mittee meeting in the Chamber
to take up the motion for dis-
cipline and the session extension
problem. 1 went to the seat of
the Director of the Preceedings
Department in the capacity of
a Subcommittee assistant mem-
ber of the Diet Operation Com-
mittee. At that time, the
President came into the Cham-
ber at the left entrance, and 1
requested him to hold a Diet
Operation Subcommittee meet-
ing even if it might be for one
minute, saying him that if not,
further confusions would take
place. 1 now recall that the
President only replied ¢ Yes,
yves,”” in. his -"usual manner.
Then, Committeer member Asa-
oka came between among us and
shouted. Then, many guards
flocked to the scene. When 1
got down from the platform to
return to my sedt, 1 heard
clamors from the seats of De-
mocratic Liberals and Ryoku-
fukai-members, calling that the
Vice President could take the
Chair. . I saw that the Vice
President was about to take the
chair. I went behind the seat
of the President and rebuked
Mr. Matsushima for his taking
the Chalr in spite of the pre-
sence of the President. Then,
Mr. Kitamura brought a crum-
pled paper to the Chair. As I
now remember, Mr. Kitamura
may have only transmitted it.
Anyhow, 1 thought ,bhat it
would be all right if the Secre-
tary General or other officials
of the House Secretariat had
brought such a paper, but that
1t was wrong for a councillor
to bring it. So, I seized the
document, saying what it was.
Finding that it was a document
to be read out by the President,
I requested the Vice President
to take up the motion for dis-
cipline first as it had been laid
before the House. Myr. Matsu-
shima, Vice President, declared
the opening of the plenary
meeting, without any regard to
my remarks. I went down from
the platform to the seats of
stenegraphers in order to see
whether the stenographic notes
could be taken. After a while,
Mr. Nakamura took the rostrum
and I went back to my seat,
thinking that the motion for

discipline would be taken up.
But soon it became midnight.

I went immediately to the steno-

graphic record rcom to examine
the shorthand notes. This how-

ever, has nothing to do with
the event, so I need not speak
about the matter.

This was my action at the
plenary meeting of the House.
Mover of the proposal, Mr. Ryuen
Kusaba’s statement is very fre-
quently inaccurate. He has
stated that Mpr. Itano tcok the
lead in demanding the President
of the House to hold a Subcom-
mittee meeting. But Mr. Itano
was not present, and so 1
demanded the President to do
so according to the proposal of
Mr. Hara and others.- Also Mr.
Kusaba has stated that we
formed a serum to prevent the
President from taking the chair.
We never went near him to
intentionally to do such a thing.
We had been drafting the Non-
confidence Resolution in the

- Proceedings Division before the

meeting was opened. I had
intended to introduce this Re-
solution before the plenary
meeting entered into discussion.
The Director of the Division
will testify this. For I had
been drafting this Non-confi-
dence Resolution in the Direc-

when he ordered us to retire
from the Chamber and we had
resisted the guards trying to
take wus outside, this would

have clearly meant the pre-"

vention of the President of the
House from taking the chair.
But we were not given any
orders by him nor were we re-
quested to leave the Chamber.
I do not believe that we ever
prevented the -  President of the
House from taking the chair or
from performing his official
duties, At any rate, we re-
quested the President of the
House for holding a Subcom-
mittee meeting. But this was
never intentionally done as an
occasion of the ensuring riots
as Mr. Ryuen Kusaba has
alleged,

I will toueh upon the matter
relating to Mr. Matsushima.
The mover has stated that Mr.
Kitamura received the Drafted
Bill from the President of the
House and handed it over to the
Vice President, and then the
Vice President took the chair.
It i1s contrary to the fact. Mr.
Matsushima was pushed on the
platform by the Members of the
Government Party. Then, some
one handed the Draft Bill over
to Mr. Kitamura, who unfolded
1t before our eyes and the Vice

tor’s chamber immediately be-

fore the bells rang for opening
of the meeting. It is very plain
that our action was not inten-
tional. I, as a member of the
Subcommittee only requested
the president of the House for
holding a subcommittee meeting
as usual in oxder to normalize
the proceedings concerning the
Bills of which discussion was
suspended during the recess. Be-
sides, the Committee Chairman’s
report was suspended, there
were the disciplinary motion

and the urgent motion for pro--

longation of the present session.
The plenary meeting was thre vn
into disorder because Mr. Asa-
oka roared out and the guards
surrounded him. If the Presi-
dent of the House judged it
impossible to perform his duties
he could order the guards to
clear his way. But he did so,
nor did the guards touch our
bodies. In the House, those
who defied the order of the
President of the House have
hitherto been disciplined. Be-
cause he is responsible for pre-
servation of the order of the
House, as is mentioned at the
beginning of the provisions
concerning discipline in the
Rules of HC. If we had defined
the President of the House
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President’s. I would like to
clarify this. I asked the Vice
President why he took the chair
though the President was near
him by, when I saw the erum-
pled Draft Bill placed on the
table, and then I perceived that
the plenary meeting was going
to reopen, I as member of the
Subcommittee of the Diet
Operation Committee, requested
him for taking -up the dis-
ciplinary motion prior to any
other bill.” Mr. Ryuen Kusaba
has stated that I committeed
an outrage on Mr. Matsushima.
I do not remember it. As we
were all in excitement, he may
have been roughly treated by us.
As I judged that Mr. Matsu-
shima took the chair abritrarily,
I went to the chair in order to
have his proceeding explained.
I can conscientiously say that I
do not remember having com-
mittee any outrage on him, but
I admit that I was in excite-
ment then. And besides, these
things did not take place during
the sitting. For I had not taken
my seat when Mr. Matsushima
declared the opening of the
meeting. Though these things
arose 1In the Chamber, they did
not occur in the course of the
meeting. The whole tumult
occurred 1n connection with the
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matter of holding a meeting of
the Subcommittee of the Diet
Operation Committee prior to the
plenary meeting. We may have
gone too far, but what we did
was out of respect for the Rules
and the precedents. The Matsu-
shima matter occurred because
he had adopted an arbitrary
proceeding. Whatever my in-
tention may have been, if the
House approves the disciplinary
motion, I will not oppose it.
I hope all of the Members
In  question will be referred
to the Disciplinary Committee,
and that the Committee will
thoroughly inquire into the case.
This will not «only satisty us,
but also enhance the dignity of
HC.

In the next place, let me state
my opinion on the various
charges Mr. Ryuen Kusaba has
brought against me. In my
opinion, the discipline question
must be completely separated
from the political question. Mr.
Kusaba’s explanation of a
motion to discipline us confounds
a political question with a dis-
ciplinary question. Such sort of
thing cannot be allowed to
happen in HC. As the result of
the recent incident, the existence
of HC has become. a subject of
discussion. It is said that HC
has been influenced by the
political parties. Again it is
sald that it is improper for HC
to leave the Bill unfinished
which has been passed by HR.
It is also said that it is im-
proper for HC to leave the Bill
unfinished under the protext of
opposing the extension of the
term. Worse than all, it is said
that the fact that we endeavored
to prevent the passage of the
Government Personnel Organi-
zation Law 1is an* improper

action on the part of HC. And
some members intentionally as-
sociate the present case with
the attempt at revolution by
violence by the Japan Com-
munist Party. As you know,
the Japan Communist Party
officially denies revolution by
Consequently  Mr.
Kusaba’s assertion is a ground-
less accusation against us. But
even if the Japan Communist
Party declared its intention for
revolution by violence, it is a
question of political principle
on the part of the Japan Com-
munist Party, and has no con-
nection with the question of
discipline inside the House. The

- questions of two-chamber system

and of characteristiecs of HC
are also political issues. The
question whether or not HC is

influenced by political parties is
also a political guestion. Those
who think that the present case
arose as the result of Influence
exercised by the political parties
have no correct understanding
of the disciplinary question, or
they purposely try to make a
political question a disciplinary
1ssue. In Article 58 of the Con-
stitution, it is explicitly stipu-
lated that the members who
committed disorderly conducts
should be punished, It is a
personal question even in case
a member disgraced the House.
In this sense the disciplinary
question should transcend politi-
cal parties. But this again has
no connection with the question
of character of HC which should
transcend political parties. To
confound a discipline question
with the character of HC is to
make impure the discipline
question. I wish to make clear
this point first and then I will
proceed to the question which
directly concerns us.

Generally speaking, Mr. Kusa-
ba mentioned four points. He
charges, first, that we attempted
to destroy the democratic Diet
and to trample upon the Con-
stitution ; secondly, that we set
at nought the mission of the
House of Councillors; thirdly,
we Impaired the dignity of the
House ; fourthly, we attempted
organized violence, a revolution,
or a coup d’etat. These are the
four points he charged against
us. Frankly speaking, the
charge of this kind fills us with
indignation. (Cheers). Is this
Diet democratic or is it not?
Are we observing the Con-
stitution or are we not? Such
questions have no relation with
the problem of discipline. The
observance or non-observance of
the Constitution cannot be com-
pared to a motion of discipline.
I will not touch on the question
whether the reactionary revision
of labor laws was a violation of
the Constitution or whether
those Councillors who supported
the revision trampled on the
Constitution. Not many days
ago, Councillors Tamura de-
nounced labor strikes as the
employment of force in the
military sense trampling abso-
lutely upon the right to stoppage
guaranteed in the Constitution.
I will not raise the question
whether he should be referred
to the Disciplinary Committee
on that account. What has led
Mr. Kusaba to exaggerate the
matter wunder consideration ?
This is beyond my comprehen-
sion. The question whether this

— 12 —

is a democratic Diet will depend
upon the question whether it
corresponds with the will of the
people and whether it fills their
demands. This cannot be de-
cided by the consideration of
the question, who exchanged
blows on the spur of the moment?
The first criterion of a de-
mocratic legislature is, whether
the members returned thereto
are exerting themselves on be-
half of the people. Speaking
more precisely, the first eriterion
of a demoecratic Diet is, whether
it 1s redeeming the pledges
made to the people in the
General Flection (Cheers).
Indifference in this regard
destroys a Diet by undermining
confidence. This is a matter of
political conscience-—a subjeect
which has nothing to do with
a question of discipline inside
the walls of a lagislative
chamber. If, therefore, there
are many members in this
House, who are guilty of the
breaches of pledges, we will not
propose to refer them to the
Disciplinary Committee (¢ Hear,
hear”’). If anyone magnifies a
simple question of discipline into
a problem shaking the found-
ations of a Diet, suspicions will
arise that the hue and cry raised
1S a piece of manoeuvre con-
trived from a political motive.
I turn to the second point of
the allegation, the charge that
we set at nought the mission of
the House of Councillors. As to
the role of a House of Council-
lors, different men will perhaps
take different views, Some will
stress independence from parties,
and some will stress moderation,
but others will think quite other-
wise. This is a matter of politi-
cal belief. As to the events of
the last few days, some will
think that the mission of this
House was set nought, others
will declare that that is nonsense.
It 1s undeniable that in this Ses-

- sion, the House of Councillors

received greater attention than
in the preceding Sessions. Until
quite recently, the press gave
little space to this House, nor
did it make a feature in the
radio news. The people assumed
that matters passed by the
House of Representatives would
be passed by this House as a
matter of course: they took for
granted the so-called secondary
position of the House of Counecil-
lors. This Session, however,
registered a difference. Matters
which easily passed the House
of Representatives were here
subjected to searching criticism.
Some of the Bills were either

vetoed or pigeon-holed. This,
however, came from particular
circumstances, and not from the
inherent strength of this Hause.
The General Election gave an
overwhelming majority to the
Government in the House of
Representatives, but the parties
in the House of Councillors do
not act.at the beck and call of
the Government. The events of
the last few weeks demonstrated
that this House was on a par
with the other House, increasing
and not lowering its prestige in
the eyes of the people. In the
radio debate yesterday, Council-
lors Kadoya also took part. The
House of Councillors has become
a political power, though due
essentially to the situation of
parties. We learn from the
press c¢f this morning that the
House of Councillors is causing
mueh anxiety to the - Govern-
ment. This cannot be welcome
to the Ministerialists, but still
this House 1z making its power
felt.

The President: The Chair
cautions the Speaker. He will
not go beyond explanations
about his personal position.

Mr. Ko Nakanishi: The de-
mand for re-examination of the
position the House of Councillors
ought to ocecupy comes, I think,
from those who fear the rise in
the power of this House. What
I would like to say is this, that
1f the House of Councillors de-
monstrates the vigorcus power
of criticism, its prestige will
rice. Those who have suddenly

_ begun to urge the reconsideration

of the constitutional position of
this House will not be sorry to
see this House reduced to the
position of willing subordination
to the House of Representatives.

- What will be the result, 1 must

ask, 1f the question of dis-
cipline 1s alloweéd to develop in
a manner affecting the general
position of this House?

Mr. Kusaba’s explanation of
his own motion contalns some-
thing more than a mere exag-
geration. We do not say that
what we did was absolutely free
criticism, but we cag safely claim
that our political action con-
tributed to and mnot detracted
from the dignity of the House.
If our action was an excess at
all, and if treatment free from
paity bias 1s guaranteed, we
are quite willing to have the
matter thrashed out in the Dis-
ciplinary Committee. Mr. Ku-
saba’s references to organized
violence, revolution, coup d’etat
etc., do not deserve serious re-
futation. These references' of

~

Mr: Kusaba’s reveal most clear-
ly the political considerations
behind his motion. (Cheers) He
and his associates are vainly
trying to make political capital
out of the event. We ecannot
submit to such a treatment.

In come to the conclusions. I

think ;I am fulfilling honestly
and to the best of my power
the trust placed in me by my
electors, That is my duty, I
believe, as a Member and as a
politician. I have done nothing
to be ashamed of ¢ before
heaven and earch?’, but as to
the question of discipline, there

may perhaps be an objective
point of view, whatever may

have been the case subjectively.

This 1 fully admit. 1 would

like to add a few more words.

The problem of Japan now
stands at a turning point.
Shanghai has fallen. The situ-
ation In the Far East is chang-
ing rapidly and fundamentally.
The press dispatches report that
the Foreign Ministers of the
Four Powers, now conferring in
Paris, have agreed on an Octo-
ber Conference for a Japanese
peace treaty. This is a very
important time for this country,
for the eyes of the world will
be turned on Japan—to see if
democracy 1is making progress
in this country. This will be
the *crucial peint. The treat-
ment of a disciplinary motion
may have a repercussion beyond
the harrow confines of these
islands. Which way is Japan
going ? Is Japan now a real
democracy? This will be the
test. At this turning point for
the world and for Japan, it will
be well for yvou and for our-
selves td" think of the right at-
titude for national represen-
tatives and act accordingly. 1
now. close this explanation of
my personal position, thanking
you for your indulgence. (Che-
ers)

The President: Mr Karoku
Hosokawa 1s recognized.

Mr. Karoku Hosokawa: It is
quite regrettable that I also have
to take the restrum in order to
justify myself. Mr. Kusaba’s
explanation of the motion for
discipline has utterly distorted
the facts, the details of which
our colleague Mr. Itano 'has al-
ready dwelt upon. Mr. Kusaba’s
assertion has not only injured
my reputation- as. member of the
Diet, but also involves a very
vicious political motive not to be
forgiven by the mass of the
pecople. (Cheers) Heaven knows
and president Matsudaira knows
my feelidgs and actions on the

T

night of May 23. (Laughter.
Cheers.) In the last meeting of
Steering Committee that night,
Mr. Umehara, chairman, was in
great difficulties, (Laughter) 1
deeply sympathized with him for
his position. (Laughter) He re-
vealed his Incompetency to the
full. During the last recess, 1
approached Mr. Umehara to re-
cognize the persons who wanted
to speak. If not, the situation
could not be saved. Thereupon
Mr. Umehara tecok the chair and
was 7recelving the names of
speakers such as Messrs. Itano
and Nakamura. At that very
moment Mr. Yano dashed to Mou.
Umehara (Laughter) and whis-
pered in his ear. Thereupon Mr.
Umehara said something and
the floor agitated. became Poor
Umehara. (Laughter) The ple-
nary meeting of the House also
had a hard time of it through
the blunders of this sitting
of the Steering Committee.

(Laughter) The bell rang

for the reopening of plenary
meeting of the house. TUpon

entering the chamber, 1 found
that it was full of members and
that President Matsudaira was
in  trouble. (Laughter) As 1
could not look on with indiffe-
rence, I proceeded to the ros-
trum at the risk of my life,
feeling sorry for Mr. Matsudaira.
At last 1 made my way near
enough to face Mr. Matsudaira.
Then 1 said to him that he
should not open the meeting
amidst such confusion. Though
he 1s said to be hard of hearing,
he seemed to understand what
I said. As I thought I have
achieved my objective, I des-
cended the rostrum amidst the
confusion. Such was my feel-
ings and actions on the night of
May 23. Nevertheless my con-
duct has been taken up as a
subject of discipline. 1 feel very
much concerned about the House,

who have gone so far as that.:

(Cheers) (A member: Look at
the men well.) The objective of
those who are accused of dis-
ciplinable offences and theix
supporters was to defend the
Constitution, National Diet Law
and HC Regulation which are
on the point of being viclated
by the Democratic-Liberals., No
more and no less. The disorder
and confusion in the Steering
Committee and the House was
caused by the Democratic-Liber-
als . who relied only upon the
majority without inquiring into
the rights and wrongs of the
case. 1 wonder whether Mr. Ku-
saba and his supporters are in
their right senses. If they are
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in the right senses, they could
not call me and other Com-
munist members Revolutionists
who use violence. What does
the majority system mean? Is

1t a system to domineer by
majority ? Is’nt it a mere con-
venient rule for deciding the
matter ? The whole nation are
watehing how rash decisions of
HR will be moderated by HC.
(A member: You are right.)
What HC ought to do is to give
careful consideration to the de-
cisions of HR and try to reach
right conelusions., The HC must
act up to 1ts own mission.
(Cheers) If you do not realize
the great straits into which our
people are driven now, you can
hardly be expected to realize
my words., (Cheers) If you are
prepared to correct the rashness
on the part of HR, you are_not
entitled to speak of the majority
rule. (A member: You are
right.)

Mr. Kusaba said on behalf of
his party that the Communists
together with the Socialists had
almed at the force revolution.
What is the force revolution ?
Does Mr. Kusaba Know it? (Ap-
plause) If he spoke of it with-
out having had the knowledge,
I think he was blamable.

The people in general want to
repel the secret political police
system, the ‘armed forces, the
arbitrary bureaueracy, ‘ Zaiba-
tsu’, ete. These will result in
the force revolution. In the Me-
ij1 Restoration, the Shogunate
was destroyed by force. The
Declaration of Independence of
the U.S. stated: ‘“ whenever any
Form of Government becomes
destructive of these ends, it is
the Right of the people to alter
or to abolish it, and to institute
new Government, laying its
foundation on such principles
and organizing its powers in
such form, as to them shall seem
‘most likely to effect their Safety
and Happiness,”’

The President: 1 wish Mr

Hosokawa to speak within the
limit of his personal justifica-
tion. (N

Mr. Hosckawa: 1 have spoken
of how the force revolution

takes place. The history shows
that 1t has been led by those
other than the communists.
What Japan is after the end
of war, 1s quite different from
what this country was before
the last war. Before the war,
the democracy was a wvain
dream in this country. It has
at present penetrated among the
people, If, therefore, the com-
munists uphold the force revolu-

-outrageous and

tion as they did before, they

are foolish, The Communists
which are one of the political
parties have not sticked to the
force revolution Incompatible

with the current idea. Should

there be a necessity, it would
naturally break up. It is clear,

however, that Japan dose not

now necessitate the force re-
volution. (Applause)
Nevertheless Mr. Kusaba and
his party maintained that the
Communists stood for the force
revolution. It lis far from being
the truth. This absurd opinion
was expressed 1n the plenary as-
sembly and was - broadcast
throughout the whole country.
This is one of his aims. The
ruling class fear that the people
realize what the communist
party is. For this reason, they
had violently oppressed the com-
munists before the war. At pre-
sent, however, they have pro-

‘pagated that the communists

are planning the- force revolu-
tion.- (Some members: Stop
1it.) The public have realized
‘the actual situation. Those who
sald that the communists were.
the force revolutionists have lost
the face. The caricatures il-
lustrated in the German pieture
book by Max Moritz are ap-
plicable to the occasions of the
Democratic-Liberals and other
government parties.
aware that the Prime Minister
and. his comrades have conspired
against the Communists in the
contents of the various bills in-
troduced before the House.

The difficult way lies ,ahead of
the people. The Japanese pec-
ple must with one accord recon-
struct the devastated country.
Importance, however, "hias hbeen
attached to the interests of
capitalists a small number of the
people. Burdens have been
shouldered upon the laborers.
This 1s the most perilous stumbl-
ing-block to the recovery of Ja-
pan. Feellng unrest under these

circumstances, the Government

parties have falsely stated that
the Communists are planning
the force revolution,

The licence to effer snch a
motion for discipline as this
will pave the way for the re-
vival of Fascism and militarism
of former days. It was in 1933,
1if I remember correctly, that
Hitler burned the Reichstag
building of his country in de-
fence of his Nazism. Such a
licence would lead to a further
unreasonable
conduct, It is the duty of state-
men to nip an evil in the bud.
I heartilyg wish you to recover

I ani*well .

coolness and refleect on the bit-
ter experiences we had until the
end of the last war. The
President may remind me again
that what I have just sald is
not an apology. But this is the
most important point., You should
recall that you had once to
glorify the nation of the
“Greater East Asia Copro-
sperity Sphere” or that of the
so-called “ Universal Harmony,”
Who did not amongst yvou? Did
anyone of you oppose the use of
the words ‘‘ the devilish English-
men and Americans’’?

The President: Please mark
what I say. Confine you speech
to the explanation of your own
stand. |

Mr. Hosokawa: I regret that
the President and I differ in
our respective viewpoints. But
let me go on a little farther.
You are fully aware that the
militarists once taught the peo-
ple to call Britain and the
America demoniac nations.
What an attitude did yvou taken
then? Did - anyone of vou
denounce the militarists? 1
came e know this later, as I
had been detained in the Yoko-
hama Prison at that time. The
militarist Government and its
supporters carried on the pro-
paganda that these Powers
could be defeated soon, as they
were nations of democracy.
Those fanatics believed that the
United States would surrender
after the defeat in Pearl Har-
bor. What did you think of it?
They said that nothing was so

valn as democracy; the Soviet

Union, a new country for work-
Ing people, may collapse due to
the antagonism existing Dbe-

"tween various different races

Germany under the leadership
of Hitler would surely win, ete.,
etc. What did you think of this
fallacy ? The leaders of the peo-
ple must reflect on this point
seriously. (A member: *‘‘An
apology.!’’) This is my apology-
my political apology. The mem-
bers who offered the motion for
discipline must be contriving for
the revival of Fascism. None
1s so dangerous as they. We
will  resolutely fight against
such a danger. 1 sincerely hope
that the President, not thinking
the present confusion of the
House as a mere troublous oe-
currence, will taken an advan-
tage of it as its restarting
point, We are willing to co-
operate with him in achieving
this aim. This is my apology.
(Cheers.) -

The President: Mru.
Iwama, please!

NMasao

Mr. Iwama: I have been cal-
led upon to explain my own
standpoint. But 1 do not want
to act like a bird trying to get
rid of a net when caught In.
For we are found to satisfy the

Now, what is violence? Mr.
Kusaba does not define the scope
of its meaning. But isn’t 1t
necessary that we should recall
in this connection the atmos-
phere of the House on that oc-

yearnings of the people as thelr
representatives so that our time,
however short, should be spent
to attain that end. From this
viewpoint, I maintain that a
thoroughgoing debate and in-
quiry should be inade regarding
the issue ;that caused confusion
in the evening of May 23, so as
to make the House of Council-
lors a better legislative corgan.
We must inquire into the true
cause of the confusion and
endeavor to remove various obsta-
cles surrounding us In order to
make this House a stronghold of
democracy. I do not mean to
deal with superficial and trifling
matters. What I desire to do is
to uncover the core of the
question.

My second object 1s to ascer-
tain who is to mete out the dis-
cipline., It is of course every-
one of you—nay, the people
who sent you here. They are to
mete out the discipline through
you. Therefore, I may ask
whether what we have done to
them up to the present was
right or wrong. Accordingly,
it is most essential that the dis-
cipline should not be influenced
by the feeling or taste of the in-
dividual members concerned.
That which is to pass the final
judgment upon case in the his-
tory of Japan itself. We should
not forget that history 1s the
best judge. If one 1s to pro-
nounce a decision on an impor-
tant issue under the urge of a
momentary passion, he will be
severely censured by history.
Now I will proceed to the main
issue.

The purport of the motion
for discipline offered by Mr. Ku-
saba can be summarized into
the following three points:
First, the members involved in
ihis case intended to destory a
democratic Diet resorting to
violence; second, they commit-
ted a systematic mass violence
in order to attain this end;
third, the Communists and the
Social Democrats Cooperated in
doing sd, with the former tak-
ing the lead-—that is' to say, the
Social Democrats were inducted
into the plot. So the question
is, whether or not violence was
employed ; if sc, whether it was
employed according to a pre-
meditated plan; and whether the

Social Democrats were involved
in the alleged violent .acts.

casion? Every member was on
his feet, shouting something.
Perhaps, there was a member
or two who did not do so. But
I believe that most of the mem-
bers were in a commotion. It
has been alleged that we oc-
cupied the rostrum. At any
rate, a photograph then taken
shows the faces of many a
member. This may subserve the
purpose of an exhibit. Anyway,
that was. the condition of this
chamber when the alleged case
occurred. Most of the members
have recovered calmness today
and are behaving themselves as
if they had nothing to do with
it. They are now to act as we
are regarded as defendants.
Some of you, shutting your
mouth, are pretending a clean
slate. You would have this
House believe that the saidl
violent acts were committedl
only by ten or twelve of us. 1
want to know on what basis has
the sponsor of this motion has
picked us alone.

Next, the accusers are TYe-
quested to produce positive pro-
ofs as to whether the use of
violence in question was really
true, because it is a deciding
factor in this case. 1 am al-
Jeged to have been one of those
who formed a serum on that oc-
casion, so 1 beg to state my
case briefly. I was rather late
in entering the Chamber. The
moment I saw a crowd of mem-
bers struggling for something, 1
approached the spot. 1 found
there Mr. Hosokawa being jos-
tled amidst the House guards.
So I rushed to his rescue. 1
cried to the guards, with him
in my arms, reminding them to
return to their duty to protect
the honorable mentber from
danger. This was the fact just
as it occurred. But the rumor
went so far as.to say that 1
prevented the House President
from taking the chair with Mr.
Hosokawa. As to the ground for
the rumor, Mr. Kusaba is surely
capable go giving c(;nvinc?ng
proofs, as he is believed to be a
person clever at fabricating a
story out of imagination. For
my part, I can flatly deny the
charge from this rostrum. At
the same time, I ask Mr. Kusa-

ba to give a counter-evidence.

When the charge is proved t({ be
false, how is Mr. Kusaba going
+6o bear the responsibility for

slandering people by distortion
of a fact. This is what I should

like to know. (Applause) DMNMr.

Kusaba, however, withdrew his
statement vesterday that the
trouble had been staited jointly
by the Socialists and the Com-
munists which from the third
point in this connection. But
the perusal of his statement
tells us that he was proceeding
from the wrung premises that
the Socialists followed the lead
of the Communists in the ‘‘out-
rageous '’ deeds forming the core
of the issue. The withdrawal
of his words on that very point,
therefore, means nothing since
he sticks to the mnotion. 1
must make the matter yet
clearer seeing that the rumor is
widely circulated. The Social-
ists say that they were man-
ipulated by only 6 Communists.
This we take as an insult to us
the Communists. 1 give this
warning to Mr. Kusaba because
I clearly remember what we had
to experience in prewar Japan.
Isn’t it necessary for us to re-
collect those days when the Gov-
ernment suppressed communism,
socialism and even liberalism 1in
order to divert the people to
ulira-nationalistic fascism? As
physical nutrition requires an
assortment of starchy, albumi-
nous and fatty substances com-
bined with vitamins, so a wel}-
balanced blending of ideas 1s
necessary for mental health.
During the War, however, we
were allowed by the militarists
to take only dextrin in the form
of ultra-nationalism, because

they denounced all the rest as
harmful. This disordered men-

tality caused by an unbalanc_ed
diet drove us to the aggressive
Pacific War. We must reflect
calmly on our past blunder.
Freedom of thought has been
acquired at the sacrifice of our
national honor, i.e. by an un-
conditionsnl surrender to the Al-
lied Powers. Can we play with
this priceless freedom? Shame
apon us who are hbeginning to

repeat the prewar and wartime
folly !~ (Applause) 1 cannot but
suspect the underlying motive of
Mr. Kusaba’s fabrication against
the Communists and the Soecial-

iste. It would be very fortunate
if his deed in question has noth-
ing to do with his career. (Ap-
plause) According to the HOC
Compendium, he successively
held posts in the Aichi Prefec-
tural Government during the
War as chief of the Military
Protection Section, Assistant-
Chief of the Munitious Disposi-
tion Bureau, Chief of the Mili-
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tary Section of the Administra-
tive Division, ete. Which side
1s really blamable for breaking
the rule, ins or outs? It is re-
grettably neglected to re-exa-
mine the pre-Government
Group’s lack of vision revealed
throughout the proceedings for
deciding the session term ex-
tension in this conneetion., I
don’t want to touch on the points
regarding conttadietion of custo-
mary sanctions at the Diet
Operation Committee and high-
handed carriage of matter’s
under the cloak of the House
President’s competence, since
they have already been pointed
out by Mr. Itano.

Mr. President, what must be
pointed out now is the question
of the relation between HC and
HR. The Government Party
having an absolute majority in
HR, House business has often
been conducted in an undemo-
cratic manner. For instance,
the Cabinet forecibly had the
enormous budget passed on the

_strength of numbers before the

passing of a concerned basic
Bill. If such a tyrannical
desposition is overlooked, it
means the destruction of our
fair government. I believe
that it was the very duty
of HOC to have exercised a
justifiable control over such
arbitrary conduct. This is the
very way to develop the funetion
of HC in making the most of
the feature of the two-chamber
system. We are have enjoying
the trust of the whole nation.
Our duty is to watch over the
whole nation. All the people are
beginning to be aware of how
HC is managed. . We ought to
endeavor to establish a true
character of the democratic
Diet.

This concludes my explanation.

If I were not a communist, my
explanation might be understood
more favorably to me. We wish
to defend the freedom of thought,

which, I believe, may prove to

be the principal road to the
establishment of a truely. de-
mocratic Japan. (ApplauSe)

The President: Mr. Toraichi
Hara, please!

Mr. Hara: I beg to. state my
position as regards the diseipli-
nary motion presented by Mr.
Ryuen Kusaba and one other
member.

I heard here the day before
yesterday Mr. Kusaba’s explana-
tory statement on that motion.

His charge against me may be ¢

summarized into the following
three points, namely: First, that
I, In a scrum with several col-

leagues of mine, stood on the
President’s way to the chair:
second, that this outrage was
committed according to a preme-
ditated plan; third, that the so-

~called lawless members should
be driven out of the House with'

their names struck out from the
list of its membership so as to
maintain its prestige. The gen-
eral tone of the statement ap-
peared to suggest that I admit-
ted the use of violence. But I
am positively opposed to his
arbitrary coneclusion and dis-
tration of fact based upon his
subjectivism that compromised
my honor. Mr. Nakamura, my
colleague, has been indignant
beyond measure at Mr. Kusaba’s
Iinsinuations to cast an undeserv-
ed blame upon us. Of course,
I, too have been ired. (Applause)
Indeed, that young and promi-
sing member of this House has
announced his intention to pre-
sent a countermotion to discip-
line Mr. Kusaba the moment
he is cleared of Mr. Kusaba’s
charge through your good dis-
cretion. But I am not. I am
not so wrought up as Mr. Naka-
mura 1s, for I believe that Mr.
Kusaba, who is a high priest
belonging to the Higashi Hongan
Temple, will no doubt be prepa-

red as Buddha’s disciple to°

retrieve his error when my in-
nocence is proved either at a
plenary meeting or through the
deliberation of the Disciplinary
Committee., (Applause) When
:l.VII‘. Nakamura demanded him to
retract his assertion to the effect
that the Socialists practically
followed the lead of the Com-
munists and so on, and his
slandorous remarks concerning
the individual action of our col-
leagues as well as myself, he
withdrew them in acquiescence
to that demand. In spite of his
retraction, however, it cannot
be denied there remains his
ulterior purpose to place the
Socialists vand the Communists
In toto under a disadvantage by
subjecting us to the House’s dis-
cipline that would focus an. un-
favorable public opinion toward
us. Still, I have not the slight-
est intention to blame him for
that. I only hope that he has
leaxnt the truth that wheever
has glass windows should take
heed In throwing stones. (Ap-
plause) (A member: Which of
them 1s a priest?) This being
the case, the Chair and all the
the members are kindly re-
quested to overlook a slight
digression I have made in ex-
plaining my position on the
matter. '

R

Mr. Kusaba alleged that I had
unduly ascended the platform
forming a serum with my col-
leagues and barred the Presi-
dent’s way. To rebut this false
accusation, I want to explain
how and why the meeting of
the House Operation Committee
was thrown into confusion, as I
feel my responsibility for it as a
member of the said Committee.
On May 23 our Committee met
as often as seven times. The
fourth sitting was opened at
9: 15 p.m. The chairman simply
reported that the Government’s
request to extend +the Diet
session had been transmitted by
the Cabinet Secretary-General.
Mr. Nakamura, a Committee-
man, took the floor and moved
that the Prime Minister should
sit with us to explain the reason
for that proposal, if the Cabinet
would respect the Diet. This
motion was unanimously adopt-
ed by our Committee, and the
Chairman, Rev. Umehara, de-
clared a short recess. As the
Cabinet Secretary-General ap-
peared before us just at that
time, Rev. Umehara declared
that the Committee would hear
an explanation from this Cabinet
official. As you know, our Chair-
man Is not an old hand at steer-
ing a public meeting, and so
failed to remind him of the
previous decision. Mr. Kadoya,
a Democrat, got indignant at
the Chairman’s attitude to ignore
the previous deecision and left
the room. At the same time, I
left there with some other mem-
bers. 1 direectly proceeded to
my seat In the Chamber, and
found there Mr. Kadova remark-
ing on the absence of a quorum.
At that time, Mr. Nakai, Chair-
man of the Personnel Committee,
was making a report. The House
soon rose for recess. Here, I
want to point out that since the

beginning of the ecurrent Diet
session the Government has
ignored the existence of the
House Operation Committee.

Those who are displeased with
this attitude of the Government
has increased in number among
the members. These are found
not only in the Opposition ecamp,
but also in the Ryokufukai Party

- whose platform is to maintain

strict neutrality. After we left
the Committee room, Mrus.
Mumeo Oku spoke as follows.
Let me quote it from the Com-
mittee Minutes: *‘ Though the
Diet session is approaching to
an end, there are many im-
portant Bills laid on the table.
The fact that the Prime Minister
has not afterded our Committee

meetings even once shows how
indifferent the Government at-
titude is toward the House of
Councillors.” 1 agree with her.
Our Committee Chairman, Rev.
Umehara, urged us to hear an
explanation from the Cabinet
Secretary-General for the reason
that this official is the highest
assistant to the Cabinet. Our
colleagues of the Liberal Party
always say the same. But 1n
‘my view, the Cabinet Secretary-
General 1s not a Cabinet repre-
sentative of full power.: The
secretaries-general to the Ashida
Cabinet and to the Katayama
Cabinet were State Minister
ranking as Vice Premiers. But
the present Cabinet Secretary-
General 1s only a Governmental
official. We have often request-
ed the Prime Minister to attend
our Committee meetings. As the
proposal to. extend the Diet
session’ had been initiated by the
Government, Prime Minister
Yoshida ought to have joined on
meeting even without our re-

'quest, if he respects the authori-

ty of this House. Accordingly ,
none can blame Mr. Kadoya’s
withdrawal from the Committee
room. Due to such lack of

sincerity of the part of the .

Government, the atmosphere of
the House Operation Committee
meeting on that day turned
worse. Our Chairman is a priest
as is Mr. Ryuen Kusaba. He i1s
a man of venerable age and
high character, but he 1s not an
expert In steering the House.
But it is not our Chairman that
is to blame. All the responsibili-
ty for the operation of the
House rests with the President.
For five yvears from 1947 1 was
a member of the Tokyo Munici-
pal Assembly presided over by
Mr. Higashi Matsunaga of the
Minsel Party. It was very dif-

ficult to this assembly steer, and

so, Mr. Matsunaga did not leave
its operation in the hands of
the steering committée alone.
This fact will be testified to by
Myr. Heiichi Toyama, Mr. Hiro-
kawa chief manager of the
Liberal Party, and by Mr. Saeki
Ozawa, Transportation Minister.

From my experience I there-
fore assert that it is an extre-
mely rash judgment to blame
those who ascended the rostrum.
We have to observe the condition
of the House Operation Com-
mittee which was held before
the last House plenary sitting
on that night. It wasg at 11:49
p.m. when the Committee was
adjurmed in confusion. None
could under-stand the Chair-
man’s announcement of the Com-

mittee decision. So, expecting
that the President would call a
meeting of the Sub-Committee
of the House Operation Com-
mittee, 1 was wailting in the
President’s drawing room. As
there had been submitted Mr.
Amada’s motion of non-confi-
dence in the President and Mr.
Masao Nakamura’s motion to
discipline Mryr. Junsuke Itaya,
we, believed that the President
would consult us about the order
of the House business. However,
the bell began to ring unex-
pectedly a few minutes later,
and I knew that a House plenary

sitting was going to be held

against the Parliamentary prac-
tise and the Rules of this House.
I was greatly suprised at the
hold action of the President.
From the _ beginning, the
Social Demoeratic Party has
been opposed to an extention of
the parliamentary term and
maintained that an extraordina-
ry session should be convoked in
case the deliberation on all the
bills 1s not finished by the end
of the current session. If con-
vocation of an extraordinary
session had been determined as
our party mailntained, the con-
fusion of this time would not
have occurred. As we had been
determined to demand the
President to take a vote by open,
ballot under Article 138 of HC"
Rules 1n order to clarify where
the responsibility rested and_to
explain our intention, 1 entered
the Chamber and tried to go to
Mr. Teramitsu, Chief of the
Diet Proceedings Dept., to take
necessary procedures according
to the Rules. But interrupted
by a large number of guards
and by Mr. Asaoka, I could not
talk with Mr. Teramitsu. Nay,
I was pushed back by guards. 1
only intended to performmy duty
as a member of the Diet Opera-
tion Committee. Now I want to
emphasize that if 1 had been
able to discharge my duty of

e . B o —_ _— —
[ - . —

lors Rules. None can deny this

fact. This 1s testified to by the
stenographie record of that
evening. I hope you will read
the record, as it has already
been prepared.

From what 1 have said so far,
you will understand that I tried
to ascend the rostrum not for
the purpose of interfering with
the President but for the pur-
pose of discharging my duty.as
a member of the Diet Operation
Committee,"and that 1 was pre-
vented from attaining my aim
by Mr. Asaocka and several
ouards. Mr. Kusaba alleges that
we committed a violence accord-
ing to a plan. But as would be
clear from what I havetold thus
far, I only tried to expedite
the meeting according to the
Rules and wished to demand the
President to take an open vote.
It is to my great regret that 1
could not accomplish my inten-
tion due to the riot in the

House.

In the latst place, Mr. Kusaba

regards me a ruffian who em-
ployed violence. In this connec-
tion I want to speak about my
principle and motto. Briefly 1

am a soclal demcerat and, there-

fore, I deny violence strongly.
““One who wishes to harvest
peace should cultivate justice”
is my motto. 1 have done my
best for the development of
trade unions and proletarian
parties during the past twenty
years. 1 have fought against
injustice employilng every means
conceivable except viclence. In
operating democratic govern-
ment, it is important to esteem
the opinion of minority, though
it* is government by majority.
If anyone should disregard laws
and regulations relying upon
the force of majority, we must

- resolutely fight against them by

all means available. HC can
maintain its dignity and win
the confidence of the people by
fighting with those who curry
favor with influential persons

taking the necessary formalities,
for adopting an open ballot that
evening’s sitting must have been
adjourned. To speak in detail,
it was at 11:54 p.m. that the
plenary meeting was opened.
This is certain referring to the
stenographic records. It would
have taken at least ten minutes
to finish an open vote. Accord-
ingly 6 minutes was not enough
to finish the vote, casting alone.
Therefore, it was 1mpossible
judging from the time available,
to hold a legitimate plenary
meeting on that evening in ac-
cordance with the National Diet
Law and the House of Council-

ST .

and act willfully, relying on the
power of majority. We must

not consider that the dignity of

HC will be enhanced by glving
disciplines in the present case.
More fundamental measures
should be taken. 1 believe that
the responsibility for the case In
question lies with the President,
the Chairman and the members
of the Diet Operation Committee.
I expressed this view of mine
at a meeting of the members of
the said Committee held on May
27. 1 maintain that the members
of the Committee should resign
en bloc and the measures for a
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better In the House should be
studied by the newly-elected
members of the Committee. Mr.
Kadoya and two or three other
members supported my proposal.
But the members of' the De-
mocratic-Liberal Party raised a
streng objection to it. From
what I have said above, 1 assert
that I have done nothing for
which Mr. Kusaba has accused

me.,

Lastly, I beg to state that I
feel responsible for the ocecur-
rence in question as a member
of the Diet Operation Committee.

(Applause)

The President (Mr. Matsudai-
ra): We shall now take a recess

for ten minutes.

The meeting entered into recess

at 4:05 p.m.

(Meeting reopened at 4:34 p.m.)

The President: We.will re-
open the meeting in continuation
of our proceedings before the
recess. We will resume the
discussion of the 1l1st Itemn on
the Agenda, namely, the Motion
for Discipline. The Chair gives
leave successively to make per-
sonal explanations. Myr. Katsu-
masa Amada, please.

Mr. Amada:; The day bhefore
yesterday, Mr. Ryuen Kusaba
explained the purport of the
motion he had presented for our

those who have been responsible
for the said misdemeanors should
be removed from this House.
Fourth: Mr. Kusaba is of the
OpiniOI} that what they had com-
mitted should be attributed to a

premeditated plan.

These are the four points of

the charge. Mr. Kusaba did
not deal with the individual
members, but charged that the
acts In question were acts or-
ganized and done by the 8 mem-
bers as a grop. The acts, how-
ever, were none of the sort, and
I must first make this- point
clear. Mr. Kusaba assumed
from the beginning that they
were concerted acts, but he
failed to give concrete evidence.
I doubt if it is necessary to dis-
prove this sort of general alle-
gation; but I will begin with a
detailed statement for myself.
I had been attending the
Finance Committee that day all
through. At 9:44 p.m., as T re-
member, that is, after the vote
on the Bank of Japan Law
Amendment Bill, Chairman Sa-
kurauchi adjourned the Com-
mittee for a little while, saying
that he had received notice of a
conference of Committee chair-
men. As it was only two hours
before the close of the Session,
1t was understeood that the recess
would only be brief, that is, that

President’s Salon, where that
Committee was sitting, and
listened to the lively discussion.

I knew that Mr. Masao Na-
kamura, a Social-Democrat, had
already given notice of a dis-
ciplinary motion against Mr.
Itaya, the Transport Committee
Chairman, for he had himself
told -me s6. This. disciplinary
motion was a matter to be taken
up before other business, accord-
ing to HC Rules. So I asked
Steering Committee members
about that matter, but they
could give no definite answer.
‘Precious time at the close of
a Session, I thought, was being

- wasted. Why not take up that

motion and twenty other matters
walting to be dealt with?
There was enough time for
that, if. only the members had
the will. The responsibility
of the House must be very
heavy, if this business was neg-
lected. 1 was worrying about
such matters, when the Steering
Committee sat for the seventh
time. Other speakers had al-
ready referred to the proceeding
of Mr. Umehara, as Chairman
of the Committee, on that night.
He 1s mnow sick in bed, I am
told, while he is hale and sound.
(Laughters) I would rather
avold references to him, but I
regyet I cannot do so. On the

sentatives from the room. Amid
this turmoil, Mr. Yano moved
the prolongation of the Session
by two days, which motion, how-
ever, was seconded by nobody,
as is clear from the Record. A

motion cannot be adopted unless

there is a seconder. This not-
withstanding, the Chairman put
the matter to the standing vote,
and declared the motion adopt-
ed. As the Committee members
among you are well aware, the
whole thing was altogether ir-
regular.

The opening of the Committee
without reference to the Com-
mittee 1itself, the order to the
non-members to leave the 1com,
and the adoption of a motion
not supported by a seconder—
these were violations of the
Diet Law and HC Rules. It
would have been strange if there
had been no indignation. Cries
of ‘“plenary assembly’” were
loudly heard. I still remember
who so shouted, though it is not
necessary on my prrt to give
names. At this point, 1 asked
about the disposition of the
motion previously presented by
Mr. Nakamura, a Social-Demo-
crat. The adoption of another
motion without disposal of the
previous motion must surely be
an irregularity. To my ques-
tion, there was no answer, only

o

submitting a Resolution of Non-
confidence in the President. But
I could not ascend the platform,
because the preparation of the
document had delayed my ent-
rance into the Chamber giving
up the idea of approaching the
Chief of the House Proceedings
Section, I stood on the right
side of the Stenographers’ Box.
Then, I heard these voices behind
me: ‘ Photograph this scene”
and ‘“ Mryr. Stenographer, write
it down minutely.”” Though I
remember who uttered these
voices, please allow me to re-
frain from naming him. In the
meantime, the crowed on the
platform dispersed a little, so 1
walked up to the Chief of the
House Proceedings Section, and
placed my draft of the Resolu-
tion in his hand. This can be
testified by him. At that time
he said to me, ‘ Your submis-
sion of this Resolution gives me
much trouble. It cannot be put
on the Agenda before 1t 1s ex-
amined by the Sub-Committee.”
I understood what he meant.
But I said, ‘1 cannot help tak-
ing this procedsre, since my pro-
posal to open the Sub-Committee
has been refused. Anyway, please
take this document; it 1is pre-
pared in due form.” Exchang-
ing such conversation, I handed
it over to him. On the way to

back to my seat. While 1 was
listening to Mr. Nakamura’s
speech, midnight came, and the
House was adjourned.

As Mryr. Toraichi1 Hara has
pointed out, the President 1Is
responsible for the riot. For 1t
occurred because he disregarded
HC Rules and the usage of
House steering. I remember
July 5 of last year, the last day
of the second session of the
National Diet. At that time,
the most disputed political issue
was the Bill for suspension of
payment of interest upon war-
time bonds. The Finance and
Banking Committee was deli-
serating on.this Bill. The mem-
bers of the House Operation
Committee expected that the
term of the session would be ex-
tended in order that the Bill in
question might be passed. ‘Pos-
sibly at about 11 p.m. there was a
rumor that the Financial Affailrs
Committee had finished deli-
beration on the Bill. Hearing
this, however, the Operation
Committee adjourned. But the
reality was this: At that time,
the Chairman of the Finance
and Banking Committee was Mr,
Hideo Kuroda. He 1s a very
clever man. "On that day, thir-
teen bills had been forwarded
from HR to HC, the Bill In
question ecoming first. But this
clever Chairman decided to de-
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discipline. His speech was elo-
quent. But mine, on the con-
trary, may be awkward. He is
a university graduate, while I
graduated only from a primary
school. So, after all, I am not
Mr. Kusaba’s rival in a word
battle. But I shall tell you the
truth, looking into Mr. Kusaba’'s
eyes directly. He will know
whether I am right or wrong.
According to the stenographic
record, the charge he preferred
against me consists of the fol-
lowing points. First: It is al-
leged that I together with Mr.
Katsuji Itano, Mr. Masao Naka-
mura, Mr, Kunihiko Kanie, Mr.
Ko Nakanishi, Mr. Karoku Ho-
sokawa, Mr., Masao Iwama, and
Mr, Toraichi Hara collaborated
in order to prevent the President
from taking the chair, when a
plenary meeting was about to
be held at about 11:50 p.m.
We, the eight members, are sup-
posed to have confronted the
President on his way to the
chair. Second: It is alleged
that such interference with the
President’s funections perforce
meant a destruction by violence
of the democratic Diet ... or a
negation thereof. ... and a trea-
son agalnst the people. Third:
It 1s therefore proposed that

the sitting weoeuld be resumed
Immediately on the return of
the Chairman. We remained
for the moment in the Com-

mittee Room, waiting for his.

return. Seemingly he was not
coming, so the niembers began
to leave the Room one after
another. After half an hour,
Mr. Ryutaro Takahashi and I
were the only members that
remained. I was writing a
speech to oppose the State Hos-
pitals Special Account Bill. Ten
minutes later, Mr. Monjuro
Kukl came in and said that

there would be no resumption .

of the Finance Committee, as
the Steering Committee was in
trouble. So saying, he left the
Room again. By this time, Mr.
Takahashi had already disap-
peared from the Room, but I still
continued to write the speech.
I heard noisy voices coming
from the second flecor, and 1
asked Secretary Kawakami what
ail this meant. . Just at that
moment, another Secretary came
in to say that the Steering Com-
mittee was stormy. He added
that members were nearly com-
ing to blows. But I still continu-
ed writing, and when I finished,
it was 2 minutes before 11
o’cloeck. Then I went to the

2P

resumption of the Steering Com-
mittee at 11:47, he asked those
not- themselves Committee mem-
bers to leave the ‘room, that is,
the President’s Salon, even if
they were members of the House.
The Chalrman had failed +to
refer the resumption of sitting
to the Committee—another vio-
lation of the Rules. Quarrels
ensued over the competency of
the Chairman. He again de-
manded that the non-members
should leave the rcom. Finally,
he declared that the Committee

was now in session. However,.

order cculd hardly be rrestored,
many members intervened, and
the Chairman was hardly audi-
ble. I was standing just behind
the Socialist members of the
Committee—at a distance, that
18, of two metres from the
Chalrman. For the third time,
he told the non-members to
leave the rcom. We, who were
members of the House, though
not members of the Committee,

strongly protested against the

Chairman’s arbitrary conduct—
a violation of the right the Diet
Law and HC Rules recognized
for members of the House.
However, the guards, acting by
crder of the Chairman, tried to
remove us and the press repre-

that the Salon was in uprear.
The point required clarifying,
so 1 went into our lobby. Hold-
ing the President responsible,
before anybody else, for the
turmoil, I there decided to move
non-confidence in him. I draft-
ed a resolution, but the language
was very unsatisfactory, for it
was an extemporary draft. 1
revised the draft, with assist-

ance of a Social Democratic
Member, who had just come Into

the lobby. I had to.act quickly.

In the meantime, the bell
rang twilce. I entered the
Chamber with the document
that had just been prepared.
The floor was already uproari-
ous. Mr. Kusaba explained it
by the term ¢riot.” 1 think he
used this word because he had

never experienced 1t. While

joining in a proletalian political
movement, I was arrested on
the charge 'of inciting a riot.
So, I know what the term real-
ly means. It 1s not proper to
describe that scene as riotous.
It was only uproarious. A great
many members had left thelr
seats, standing or walking here
and there on the floor. There
were none sitting in thelr seats.
Amidst this confusion I tried to
complete the due formality of

my seat, I just looked back and
saw the House Assistant Secre-
tary-General, Mr. Kondo, sitting
at the Secretary-General’s desk,
and the Chair occupled. Feeling
that the House would resume its

_ business, I turned my head again

and found the Vice-President,
My. Matsushima, in the Chair.
Reaching near Mr. Chujiro
Hara’s seat, I heard a volce of
the Vice-President, but could not
catch his words. So I turned
back and tried to follow his
words in front of the Steno-
graphers’ Box but in vain. The
Vice-President stood up and
spoke out, but I could not catch
what he meant. He took up the
microphone in his hand and
shouted. But still 1 could not
understand it. Soon after, he
raised his two fingers in such a
manner as 1s seen in the stock-
exchange hall. I wondered what
it meant. What I could hear
was such fragmentary - words as
“ Diet session,” ‘“‘two days,”
and ‘“decided ’’. Mr. Nakamu-
ra was near to seek an oppor-
tunity of taking the floor. The
uproar began to ebb and the
Vice-President’'s volce became
audible. I could ecatch every
word of his calling on Mr. Na-
kamura to speak. I turned
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liberate on the Bill last of all.

Consequently, this Bill was not
at all deliberated at the Com-
mittee meeting. He did such a
trick. It was at about 11:40
p.m. that the members of the
Diet Operation Committee learn-
ed that the investigation of the
Bill had not been finished. Ten
minutes before that, the Govern-
ment proposed an exgension of
the session., The members of
the Committee approved of this
offer. But the President decided
not to extend it on the ground
that there was no time to dis-
cuss this proposal. The attitude
of the President on that occa-
sion is quite a contrast to his
conduet of this time. 1f the
President had been so eagetl on
that occasion as not to mind
violating HC Rules and usages in
the interests of the Democratic-
Liberal Party, the problematie
War Bond Interest Payment
Suspension issuve ‘would have

been settled at that time. It s

because of such a conduct of the
President of this time that 1
have proposed a draft Resolu-

~tion for Non-confidence in him.

Next I want to make an expla-

. nation about the fact that not-
withstanding I am not a mem-
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ber of the Diet Operation Com-
taken the
Since
the first session of the National
Diet, I have been a parliament-
ary officer of my Party. 1
alone have held this position
continuously from the beginning.
During the first session, 1 was
the party’s parliamentary Chief
Executive., My seat was next
to the seat of Myr. Matsumoto
At present my

mittee 1 have
procedure 1in question.

Vice President.
seat is next to that of Mr.

Hatano, the whip of the Social
Democratic Party. For these

reasons I have been entrusted
with the business of procedures.

From this you will -see that it
was my duty to take the nec-
essary procedures on that even-

ing. I had no prearranged plan.
If I had had an intention to
defeat the =session extension
motion, I could easily have done
so. This will testify that 1 had
not framed any such plot.

All &he newspapers took photo-
graphs of the scene of violence
on that night,...... Could you find
me anywhere in the photo-
graphs? I do not deny that I
ascended this platform, for
which I had ample 7reason.
Could you find anyvbody in the
photographs who took part in a
scrimmage ? Mr. Kusaba seems
to have no experience in taking
part In a scrimmage. In such a
scattered state, we can not take
part RS RhY secrimmage.
(Cheers.) (Laughter.) At that
time I was just before the plat-
form. It is simply astonishing

that I coule take part in a .

serimmage from here. It is also
a bilg lie that we eight members
were In readlness to block the
Presidents’s way. No photo-
graph shows that anybody stands
in the President’s way. It is a
great annoyance to me if you
take such steps on the assump-
tion that the Social Demoecratic
Party 1s detestable and the
Japan Communist Party, parti-
cularly, Amada 1is detestable
simply because he proposed the
motion for non-confidence in the
President.

It is also a lie that eight
members dashed to the rostram.
No member dashed to the ros-
trum.  This has been made
clear by the justifications made
so far by the members before
me. That sert of action cannot
properly be deseribed by the
term ‘‘dash.” 1 have the .ex-
periences of strikes, throwing
dynamites and brandishing bloo-
dy swords. The scene on that
night was little more than a pro-
menade. (Laughter)

It 1s also a lie that we had
fought with the guards. No
necessity is felt for self-justifi-
cation against this charge.

The next charge is that we
intended the destruction of the
democratic Diet in. violation of

~the Constitution. This is an

amazing bombast. We acted by
due formalities preseribed in the
National Diet Law under the
Constitution. It is a false ac-
cusation to say that to act by
the formalities prescribed in.the
House of Councillors Regulation
1s to destroy the democratic
Diet. ,

As to the next charge that
our action was tantamount to
the denial of democratic Diet,
I wish to refute it with the
same argument just made.

The next charge is that our
action betrayed the trust of the
people. We profess that the
Soclial Democratic Party is the
party of the mass of the people.
So we have the trust of the
people. We tried to observe the
rules in the legislative branch
of Government. There ig no
betrayal of the- trust of the
people.

The above 1s the denial of the
facts, but Mr. Kusaba asserted
that all the accused members
must be banished from the
House. He says that those
members who committed the
acts of violence must be expel-
led from the House. If he in-
sisted that such a person should
be referred to the Disecipline
Committee on acecount of such
and such facts, we should sub-
mit 1t. But it must be horne
in mind that by the National
Diet Law and Article 238 of the
House of Councillors Regula-
tions, the motion for discipline
may be voted without debate.
Mr. Kusaba’s motion refers to
the penalties to be meted out
after the verdict is rendered by
the Discipline Committee. (Lau-
ghter) It is a great annoyance
to us that we should be pre-
destined for certain kind of
punishment. No matter what
Mr. Kusaba says, however, I
hope all the colleagues will give
fair treatment to this matter. Mr.
Kusaba is a Buddhist priest by
profession as has been pointed
out by other members and is
well accustomed to perform
funeral services. (Cheers) But
it is quite unreasonable to read
a funeral service In advance.
He goes so far as to violate
Article 238 of the House of
Councillors Regulations. (Lau-
ghter) (A member: “ Be seri-

ous.””) Anyhow so far as Iam .
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concerned, all the charges, Mr.
Kusaba has brought against me
are false. And what 1 left
unsaid today will be said in the
coming Discipline Committee.

It is said that in the advanced
democratic countries even the

- press are very reluctant to refer

to matters injurious to the repu-
tation of a person. Once the
reputation is injured it cannot
be restored even he is acquitted
afterward. My reputation has
already been injured by the
very fact that I have to take
the rostrum to justify myself.
Let me repeat my wish that
my colleagues, whichever parties
they - belong to, give fair dealing
to this question.. (Cheers)

The President: Mr. Yobun
Kaneko, Please!

Mr. Kaneko: I beg to briefly
state my self-defence. 1 heard
the bell ring to announce the
reopening of the House plenary
session in the Socialist Lobby
at the midnight of the 23zd.
But I had then a suspicion that
it was too late for the meeting
to be held, for 1 knew the Diet
Operation Committee was having
a conference and 1 was await-
ing to hear its outecome. The
bell sould have rung after that.
(Applause) I entered the Cham-
ber and took my seat wondering
what could be the metter. After
a moment the House President
came in and the disorder follow-
ed. I was coolly looking on the
scene of the storm. Miss. Natsu
Kawasaki, my Party colleague,
demanded the reason why 1 was
keeping aloof from the trouble.
(Laughter.) 1 only answered
her that the stirring scene
wasn’t the stage for me and
looked her in the face. After
a minute, when 1 glanced at the
center of the Chamber, 1 found
Mr. Kazuo Kitamura struggling
to carry the .Vice President
Matsushima to the chair holding
the latter in his arms. 1 am a
playwright and a stage-manager
by profession. So I have a more
observing eye than average per-
sons, I am accustomed to dis-
tinguish a pose of love and a
pose of anger at a glance. The
moment I glanced at the sight
of Mr. Kitamura’s effort to set
Mr. Matsushima in the chair, 1
instinetively perceived that there
was a plot to foreibly extend
the Diet session. Simultaneously,
I found the House President
Matsudaira amidst the turmoil
on the opposite side of the House
Vice President Mrtsushima, and
it was impossible then to convey
wills between them. 1 felt In-
stantly that what was golng on

was an attempt at illegality and
impropriety and abuse of power
in order to extend the session
term In disregard of the House
President. As luck woyld have
it, the meeting had not yet been
declared open, so I tried to as-
cend the platform, to demand
the reason for the irregular
procedure. At first I shouted
somewhere about there. But
how ecould I make myself heard
even shouting at the top of my
volce amidst the roars? So I
went close by Vice President
Matsushima and demanded the
reason for the irregularity. I
repeated, but his mouth was
closed  as an oyster. Then
many members came rushing on,
so did the guards to prompt the
members to leave the platform.
I, too, descended the steps. As
I passed by the stenographer’s
seats I heard the Vice President
declare that the House was in
session. When I returned toc my
seat, I remember that a small
crowd still remaining around the
chalr shouting something. Then
I heard the Vice President rais-
ing shrill, plaintive cries, and I
saw him showing two fingers.
The aforementioned 1is the
description of the actualities that
then existed. You are most
kindly requested to understand
that 1 ascended the platform

induced by the strange conduct.

of the Vice President and Mr.
Kitamura. .

Next, 1 should like to point
cut {the outrine elements in the
statement of Mr. Ryuen Kusaba
in so far as regards myself.

To begin with, I want to touch
on the allegation that I used
brutal forece in trying to pull
down the Viece President from
the chailr. If I had acted as he
sald the photograph inserted in
the Mainichl of May 24 which 1
regard the most powerful proof
of the actual seceneé, must have
been a made-up plcture. 1
believe you have had a look at
it. The photo print shows the
Vice President deep in the chair,
and on his left-hand Mr. Kita-
mura standing half covering the
Viée President’s body. And 1
am shown on the right-hand
side of the chair at an ordinary
speaking distance. I am in a
pese of charging him for someth-
ing, far from touching the Vice
President’s dody. So Myr. Kusa-
ba’s statement to the effect that
I tried to pull down the Vice
President by sheer force during
the few minutes I was on the
platform is nothing but a mer-
ciless, sophistecated fabrication
to prove iInnocence as guilt. 1

admit that 1 demanded the Vice
President to leave the chair on
account of his arrogant and
illegal conduet, because 1t is a
correct statement of the fact.

- But'the accusation that I tesort-

ed to brute force is a mere
distortion of the fact, so is the
statement that I tried to pull
his leg. I am not a mean man
like that.

The second peint of my apcolo-
getic explanation is related to
another statement of Mr. Kusaba
accusing me of trylng to take
the papers by force and tear
them. This is also a falsehood
from ill will. 1 remember very
well that there were the papers
in question with corrections in
red on the table. Then, there
appeared a fist from under my
left arm. It often knocked the
table, sometimes falling down
on the said papers. I saw Mr.
Kitamura streteh his arm to
restrain the fist every time it
fell on the table, but 1 never
saw the papers leave the table.
The papers were placed within
my reach. I could dispose of
them in any way 1 liked, i1f only
I had the will to do so. The
very fact that the papers always
remained safe on the table is
positive proef that Mr. Kusaba
told a lie in his statement.
Next, the charge that I attempt-.
ed to put the microphone out of
order 18 a nonsense, because it
stood at some distance from the
position 1 was occupying. This
much is an outline explanation
of my behavior in these moments.
The only fault with me 1s that
I was not acquainted with puni-
tive rules of the House because
of my short experience as a
Diet Member. 1 mnever knew
that it deserves punishment in
the Diet to ascend to a place
near the chalr before 1t is
formally declared that the House
1s In ression. In conelusion of
my apolegetiec explanation, 1
heartily beg your pardon for hav-
ing caused you trouble through
my ignorance. (Applauce.)

The President: Related mem-
bers have asked for leave +to
make explanations of their res-
pective positions against the
motions for diseipline proposed
by Mr. Gengo Kinoshita and 4
others and by Mr. Shigeharu
Nakano respectively. They will
be recognized 1in the order of
notification. Mr. Nobuo Asa-

oka !
Mr. Nobuo Asacka: 1 am
going to explain my position

against the motion for discipline
proposed by .Mr. Gengo Kino-

R g

-stating  that such

shita and Mr. Shigeharu Nakano
at the plenary meeting on May
28. Mr. Kinoshita pointed out
that 1 had committed various
violent aciions in the Chamber
in the evening of the 231d,
violent
actions done by the Parliament-
ary Vice Minister impaired the
dignity of the House.

I shall briefly state the condi-
tion at that time. On that
evening, the bell was rung to an-
nounce the opening of a plenary
meeting and 1 took my seat.
After a while, the President
entered the Chamber. But
several members went up to the
platform and prevented the Pre-
sident from taking the c¢hair.
I was only watching the scene.
After a while, Mr. Onogi,
Chairman of the Diet Members
Committee of the Democratic
Liberal Party, came up to me
and said: “‘ Be quick and help
the President into the chalr as
there is little time left.” But I
remained at my seat. (Laugh-
ter) Then Mr. Juzo Tsukamo-
to, Chairman of the Welfare
Committee, went up to 1the
platform. He is an elder mem-
ber of the Socialist Party. See-
ing him checking the violent
members, I left my seat. When
I came to this spot, Mr. Tsuka-
moto told me not to come. 1
went toward the seats of the
Government Delegates as 1 am
one of these Delegates, At that
time, however, several members
forming a loose scrum, were bar-
ring the President’s way. Un-
able to go to my seat, 1 was
standing there. Fresident Matsu-
daira was moreand more prevent-
ed from taking his seat. When 1
endeavored to clear my way, 1
saw the Director of the Guard De-
partment telling the President
that the Vice President had
taken the chair. Leaving the
matter to his best judgment, the
President handed over the. docu-
ments to Mr. Aoki.
hind the chair and saw two cer-
tain members pulling the hands
and feet of the FIresident. 1
checked these viclent members
from dolng so.
back to my seat, seeing that the

Vice President had taken the
chair and announced the open-

ing of a plenary meeting.
Mr, Nakano alleged that 1

was the chief leader who brought
cut the confusion of the Cham-

ber by using viclence when he

was requesting the opening of
a Subcommittee meeting. As I
have said just now, the meeting
was already in- confusion when
platform.

1 went up to the

I went be-.

Then 1 went
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Therefore, it is utterly a false
charge to allege that 1 was the
chief leader who plunged the
meeting into confusion. Im-
mediately after the ‘Vice Presi-
dent declared the adjournment
of the meeting. 1 saw Member
Amada rushing toward the Vice
President with a threatening
look. Protecting the Vice Pre-
sident, I left the Chamber with
him to send him to the Vice
Minister’s room.

Such being the case, the allega-
tion that 1 was the chief leader
who plunged the meeting 1nto
confusion and that I committed
violent actions to enable the
Vice President to take the chair
1s all groundless. 1 did protect
the Vice President because 1 saw
the fact that members of the
Opposition Parties, after pre-
venting the President from pre-
forming his dutles, intimidated
the Vice President by violence.
I hope that all members who
attended the meeting on that
evening will give a just judg-
ment on the matter. (Cheers)

The President: Mr. Uemon
Ikeda, please!

Mr, Uemon Ikeda: 1, on be-
half of the people, have the res-
ponsibility to reflect the publie
opinion in the national policy.
I regret that I must explain my
own position. In compliance
with the request o¢f my fellows,
I looked for Viece Prime Minis-
ter, Mr. Hayashi all over the
House after eleven O’cloek in
the evening on the 23rd. As
Mr. Kato said that he would
fetch him, I entered the Diet
Operation Committee Chamber
ahead of him. I stood behind
committee member Mr. Hiraoka
near the spot where the incident
occurred. Hearing a loud voice
I turned round, when I saw Mr,
Kato being beaten by some
member. I eried two times or
so to stop his outrage. Mr.
Kato was hidden from sight be-

«hind the surging crowd. And I

saw some one running after him.
When I was going to enter the
Hall, one of my fellows told me
that it seemed to him that I was
beaten. To my surprise, on the
following day, the Mainichi
reported as if the incident had
occurred between member Mr.
Kanie and me. I believe that
you members standing by me.
will testify that I had nothing
to do with the incident.

Next, 1n the chamber, a mem-
ber standirg by me said +that
all the Ministers, except the
Agriculture and Forestry Minis-
ter, had attended the meeting.
Many members stood in my

way so I eclimbed the stairs
leading to the platform, when I
saw some members crying loud-
ly by the side of Vice President,
Mr. Matsushima. Many mem-
bers were standing by #nd
below the platform. After

greeting the Vice President, I

went to the Government Deli-
gates’ seats and then returned
to my seat. The movers, judg-
ing by the news accounts and
photographs, concluded that I
was involved in the incident. 1
saw over 20 members standing
on the platform then, I do not
remember who they were, as 1
was excited then., Even a first-
class paper 1n the metropolis
made an incorrect report of me.
If Mr. Kinoshita, Mr. Nakano
and others, who have always
been advocating democracy and
making every effoert for execu-
tion of reasonable administra-
tion took, had judged things
cooly and fairly they would have

admitted that I had not com-

mitted snch a thing as they
pointed out.

The President: Mryr. Yoshito
Okamoto, please.

Mr. Okamoto: I wish to give
an explanation of my personnel
conduct. The Diet Operation
Committee meeting of may 23
was discussing the extension of

the session In a most excited

manner. The room was packed
with hearers until 11.30 in the
evening, and was very noisy.,
The chairman often ordered the
hearers out of the room but
could not make himself perfect-
ly understood. He was compl-
led to call a recess, and went
to the President’s room to talk
over the matter, and the hearers
thronged to the President’s room
after him. The Chairman want-
ed to open the Committee meet-
ing again, and he could hardly

- reach the chair, coming out of

the president’s rcom. By the
time, owing to the clamors in
the meeting, and to the in-
numerable suggestions from the
members not on the Committee,
the old Chalrman, Mr. Umehara
was so exhausted physically and
mentally that 1 could perceive
a pitiable expréssion of anguish
111 the countenance of the Chaix-
man.

It 1s stated that I used foice
to make the chairman take the
chalr, but the faect is that, as
I worried about his health, I
toock him by. the hand, and got
him out of the crowd and sue-
ceeded in making him take the
chalr without any hitech. I only
helped my chalrman as a mem-

ber of the Diet Operation Com-

mittee and a fellow member of
my party.

It is also remarked that the
Committze meeting of that even-
ing was overborne by Mr. Yano
and Mr. Okamoto. I was sitting
farthest from the chairman, and
as I could scarcely hear him due
to the clamor, I said to Mr.
Shibata, the stenographer,—~sit-
ting next to me, “ You cannot
take it down here; go and creep
under the seat of the Chair-
man.* He could reach that seat
and took down our speeches
minutely, including my words
‘“ You connot take it down here.”’

As was written in the minutes,
Mr. Yano made a motion second-
ed by myself and two or three
others, the Committee Chairman

- took a standing wvote, and 1t

was decided that the extension
of the term should be submitted
to the plenary session. (Ap-
plause)

At the plenary session, the
House was 1n disorder, and the
Vice Minister was belng dragged
out the Chalr when he had
hardly taken, and so 1 support-
ed/the Chair which was almost
upturned. As the declaration of
the opening could not be heard
well, I looked at the microphone
and found its wire cut. The
floor of the House could not
hear the Vice Minister declaring
the number of days for exten-
sion. Many members inquired
for how many days 1t wonld be
extended. When I conveyed the
question to- the Viece Minister,
he held up two fingers which
meant two days. We did not
inquire for how many weeks nor
how many months but inquired
for how many days the session
was to be prolonged. And there
was no doubt that he meant
two days by two fingers.

When the Vice Minister asked
if there was no objection, the
House was in disturbance, but
it was plainly understood, be-
cause a majority who supported
the proposal stood up. After
the voting, Mr. Nakamura was
given leave to take the rostrum.
When he took the rostrum, some
members raised an cbjection to
the voting taken shortly before.
[ ran to the Chief Secretary
and inquired if the extension
had been lawfully decided, to
which he replied that 1t had
been so decided. Returning to
my seat, I told 1t to those mem-

bers of the Ryokufu-kai, and
they were all satisfied with it.

I believe, 1 have faithfully
dizscharged my duties hoth as a
member of the Diet Operation
Committee and a member of the

Subcommittee, and never disturb-
ed the order or stained the honor
of the House. (Applause) This
concludes the explanation of my
personal conduct. (Applause)

The President: Mr. Torio Ya-
no, please.

Mr. Torio Yano: As a mem-
ber and director of the House
Operation Committee and also a
member of its Subcommittee, 1
did my best toc perform my duties
both at the Committee meeting
and at the plenary sitting on
that night, so that - -the House
might smoothly proceed with its
business on behalf of the people.
Believing that all the ladies and
gentlemen then present were
fully aware whether or not 1
acted in a manner deserving
discipline, I will make no further
explanation for my own sake.
(Applause.) |

The President (Mr. Tsuneo
Matsudaira): Mr. TsunetaroKa-
to is recognized.

Mr. Tsunetare Kato: As you
must be tired, I will briefly
justify myself in an offhand
speech. As has been referred to
by Mr. Kusaba, the Steering
Committee demanded the atten-
dance of Vice Premier Hayashi.
As I myself also recognized its
necessity, conducted both Vice
Premier and Chief Cabinet Se-
cretary from the HR to the
Steering Committee of HC,
though not the Prime Minister.
Then I stood behind the Chair-
man Umehara. The spot where
I stood was not far from the
entrance. As it was at the mid-
dle of the Committee members.
The pressure from behind was
pretty strong. When the incident
occurred, I was about to fall
staggering forward by the pres-
sure of the erowd from behind.
And I had to rest my hands
against the sHoulder of Mr. Ka-

- nie. In ordinary circumstances,

Mr. Kanie would not have beaten
me, but being excited he turned
round and gave me an instant
blow, saying ‘ What are you
doing ? . Two or three blows
followed. As the beating is not
a matter for my justification T
will not mention how many
times he beated me. This peint
has been made clear by the
frank statement of Mr. Kanie
this moerning.

et me read a part of the
stenographice record related
thereto. ‘“ Being greatly excit-
ed, I suddenly returned a blow
to Mr. Kato. . It may be presum-
ed that Mr. Kato did not mean
to do anything with malice to-

ward me. At the moment when

t thought I got out of the erowd,

someone grasped my right should-
er or neck and tried to drag me
back.”

That I had no grudge against
Mr. Kanie has been made clear
by his own statement. More-
over in view of the eircumstance,
it is unthinkable that I, as one
of members of the Government
party and a Government
delegate should dare to bring
about further trouble in the then
situation about to fall into con-
fusion I was very indignant. At
the blow Mr. Kanie gave me,
but I put up with it at the
thought of a serious affair.
(Cheers) But I am very indig-

~nant at the motion introduced

by Messrs Kinceshita and Naka-
no, who are apparently laboring
under a mistake, for discipline
against me who kept the attitude
of non-resistance. But I resign
myself to the coming trial. I
will say no more. The above is
the true facts to which the
visitos will bear witness. I ap-
apeal to your wise judgment.
(Cheers) |

The President: Mr. Kazuo
Kitamura, please!

Mr. Kazuo Kitamura: The
mover for discipline gave two
reasons for disciplining me: that
I took the rostrum without leave
and that I made Vice President,
Mr. Matsushima, take the chair
by force. 1 can imagine the
great difficulty with which the
movers discovered these two
reasons. But I am very sorry
to say that these are quite con-
trary to the truth. Mr. Kane-
ko stated that, I forced the Vice
President into the Chair, carry-
ing him in my arms. As he is
a play-writer, he uses a very
clever expression. But this is
quite contrary to the truth. The
atmospher then in the chamber
was very tence. 1 believe that
it was his illusion resulting from
his excitable character that gave
him such Impression. The truth
1s that as the Vice President,
Mr. Matsushima, seemed to be
hesitating to take the platform,
I asked him why, when he ans-
wered to ‘me that without the
memorandum concerning the
Order of the Day, it was quite
impossible for him to take the
chalr and proceed with the busi-
ness. As time was pressing, I
thought 1t better to notify the
President of that faet. I hur-
ried up the stairs ahead of him
and, passing behind the chair,
approached the jostling crowd.
Secretary Aoki requested me to
hand over the papers to the Vice
President. I handed them over
to him and returned to my seat.

e

I was not interrupted by any-
body. Mr. Nakano and Mr. Ki-
tamura are well aware that 1
am a hater of any kind of force.
Time was pressing, and beside 1
hoped that the prolongation of
the present Session must be de-
cided by our House, or else its
dignity would be lost. I hearti-
ly congratulate that the prolon-
gation was decided. by our House
just before twelve o’clock. At
that I could think of nothing
but the dignity of our mouse,
casting aside all personal con-
siderations. But I regret that I
took the restrum without leave
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